
Alison Stuart
Head of Legal and 

Democratic Services

This agenda has been printed using 100% recycled paper

MEETING : PERFORMANCE, AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

VENUE : COUNCIL CHAMBER, WALLFIELDS, HERTFORD
DATE : TUESDAY 4 SEPTEMBER 2018
TIME : 7.00 PM

MEMBERS OF THE COMMITTEE

Councillor M Pope (Chairman)
Councillors A Alder, P Ballam, P Boylan, S Cousins, K Crofton, 
D Oldridge, T Page, L Radford, S Reed, P Ruffles, S Stainsby, T Stowe and 
J Wyllie (Vice-Chairman)

Substitutes

(Note:  Substitution arrangements must be notified by the absent Member 
to Democratic Services 24 hours before the meeting)

CONTACT OFFICER: LORRAINE 
BLACKBURN
01279 502172

lorraine.blackburn@eastherts.gov.uk

Conservative Group: Councillors R Brunton, R Henson, 
W Mortimer and C Woodward

Public Document Pack

mailto:lorraine.blackburn@eastherts.gov.uk


DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS

1. A Member, present at a meeting of the Authority, or any committee, sub-
committee, joint committee or joint sub-committee of the Authority, with a 
Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (DPI) in any matter to be considered or being 
considered at a meeting:

 must not participate in any discussion of the matter at the meeting;

 must not participate in any vote taken on the matter at the meeting;

 must disclose the interest to the meeting, whether registered or not, 
subject to the provisions of section 32 of the Localism Act 2011;

 if the interest is not registered and is not the subject of a pending 
notification, must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest within 
28 days;

 must leave the room while any discussion or voting takes place.

2. A DPI is an interest of a Member or their partner (which means spouse or 
civil partner, a person with whom they are living as husband or wife, or a 
person with whom they are living as if they were civil partners) within the 
descriptions as defined in the Localism Act 2011.

3. The Authority may grant a Member dispensation, but only in limited 
circumstances, to enable him/her to participate and vote on a matter in 
which they have a DPI.

4. It is a criminal offence to:

 fail to disclose a disclosable pecuniary interest at a meeting if it is not 
on the register;

 fail to notify the Monitoring Officer, within 28 days, of a DPI that is not 
on the register that a Member disclosed to a meeting;

 participate in any discussion or vote on a matter in which a Member 
has a DPI;

 knowingly or recklessly provide information that is false or misleading 
in notifying the Monitoring Officer of a DPI or in disclosing such 
interest to a meeting.

(Note: The criminal penalties available to a court are to impose a fine 
not exceeding level 5 on the standard scale and disqualification 
from being a councillor for up to 5 years.) 



Audio/Visual Recording of meetings

Everyone is welcome to record meetings of the Council and its Committees using 
whatever, non-disruptive, methods you think are suitable, which may include 
social media of any kind, such as tweeting, blogging or Facebook.  However, oral 
reporting or commentary is prohibited.  If you have any questions about this 
please contact Democratic Services (members of the press should contact the 
Press Office).  Please note that the Chairman of the meeting has the discretion to 
halt any recording for a number of reasons, including disruption caused by the 
filming or the nature of the business being conducted.  Anyone filming a meeting 
should focus only on those actively participating and be sensitive to the rights of 
minors, vulnerable adults and those members of the public who have not 
consented to being filmed.  

Public Attendance

East Herts Council welcomes public attendance at its meetings and will provide a 
reasonable number of agendas for viewing at the meeting.  Please note that 
there is seating for 27 members of the public and space for a further 30 standing 
in the Council Chamber on a “first come first served” basis.  When the Council 
anticipates a large attendance, an additional 30 members of the public can be 
accommodated in Room 27 (standing room only), again on a “first come, first 
served” basis, to view the meeting via webcast.  

If you think a meeting you plan to attend could be very busy, you can check if the 
extra space will be available by emailing democraticservices@eastherts.gov.uk or 
calling the Council on 01279 655261 and asking to speak to Democratic Services. 
 

mailto:democraticservices@eastherts.gov.uk


AGENDA

1. Chairman's Announcements 

2. Apologies 

3. Declarations of Interest 

To receive any Members’ Declarations of Interest and Party Whip 
arrangements

4. Minutes (Pages 7 - 24)

To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 24 July 
2018.

5. Annual Leisure Report 2017 (Pages 25 - 48)

6. Quarterly Corporate Healthcheck - Quarter 1 2018-19 (Pages 49 - 84)

7. Annual Treasury Review 2017/18 Outturn (Pages 85 - 114)

8. Shared Internal Audit Service (SIAS) - Annual Report 2017/18 (Pages 115 
- 128)

9. Shared Internal Audit Service (SIAS): Progress Report (Pages 129 - 144)

10. Performance, Audit and Governance - Work Programme 2018/19 
(Pages 145 - 164)

11. Urgent Items 



To consider such other business as, in the opinion of the Chairman of the 
meeting is of sufficient urgency to warrant consideration and is not likely to 
involve the disclosure of exempt information.



This page is intentionally left blank



PAG PAG

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE
PERFORMANCE, AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE HELD IN THE 
COUNCIL CHAMBER, WALLFIELDS, 
HERTFORD ON TUESDAY 24 JULY 2018, AT 
7.00 PM

PRESENT: Councillor M Pope (Chairman)
Councillors A Alder, P Ballam, P Boylan, 
R Brunton, S Cousins, K Crofton, T Page, 
L Radford, T Stowe and J Wyllie

ALSO PRESENT:

Councillors M Allen and G Cutting

OFFICERS IN ATTENDANCE:

Lorraine Blackburn - Democratic 
Services 
Officer

Isabel Brittain - Head of 
Strategic 
Finance and 
Property

Graham Mully - Insurance and 
Business Risk 
Advisor

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE:

Debbie Hanson - Ernst Young LLP
Simon Martin - Shared Internal Audit 

Service

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



PAG PAG

112  CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS

The Chairman reminded Members that in the interests of 
transparency of decision making, all recommendations, 
other than presentations or items for noting needed to be 
formally moved and seconded.

The Chairman commented that in recognition of GDPR, all 
pink papers attached to the agenda should be disposed of 
as confidential paper.  He said that the Democratic Services 
Officer would be happy to dispose of these papers at the 
conclusion of the meeting. 

The Chairman suggested that, with the consent of 
Members, the External Auditor’s report and the Annual 
Statement of Accounts be considered before the General 
Fund Revenue and capital outturn in order to make better 
use of the External Auditor’s time.   This was supported.  

113  APOLOGIES

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors D 
Oldridge, P Ruffles, S Reed and S Stainsby.  It was noted 
that Councillor R Brunton was substituting for Councillor P 
Ruffles.

114  MINUTES

It was moved by Councillor A Alder and seconded by 
Councillor S Cousins that the Minutes of the meeting held 
on 25 May 2018 be confirmed as a correct record and 
signed by the Chairman.  After being put to the meeting 
and a vote taken, the motion was declared as CARRIED.

RESOLVED – that the Minutes of the meeting held on 

Page 8



PAG PAG

25 May 2018 be confirmed as a correct record and 
signed by the Chairman. 

115  AUDITOR'S RESULTS REPORT:  EY (ERNST YOUNG)

The External Auditor (EY) submitted the Audit Results 
report for 2017/18.  She referred to the Executive 
Summary of their preliminary audit conclusions.  The 
External Auditor stated that some outstanding matters 
needed to be resolved which were detailed in Section 3 of 
their report.  These related to:  

 Journals testing.
 Payroll differences / testing.
 Final Audit Manager and Associate Partner review of 

the audit work completed.
 Review of the final version of the financial 

statements.
 Completion of subsequent events review.
 Receipt of the signed management representation 

letter.

Subject to the above issues being resolved, EY expected to 
issue an unqualified audit opinion on the financial 
statements before the statutory deadline of 31 July 2018.   

The External Auditor provided updates in relation to the 
Executive Summary including: 

 Understatements in relation to debtor and creditor 
figures.

 Pension discounts and the impact on the pension 
reserves.

 Virgin Media and NNDR Appeals provision. 

Page 9



PAG PAG

In response to a query from the Committee Chairman, the 
Head of Strategic Finance and Property explained that 
there were a number of ongoing (NNDR) appeals and 
further information would be provided to EY when the 
Officer returned from leave.  The Head explained that the 
tighter timetable in which to produce the draft accounts 
had impacted on the pensions estimate provided by the 
County Council’s actuaries.  She provided an update in 
relation to understatements in relation to debtor and 
creditor figures. 

The Committee Chairman sought and was provided with 
clarification on a number of queries:

 whether independent partners reviewed the 
accounts;

 what had impacted on the Auditor’s final fee for 
2017/18;

 the Housing Subsidy deadline claim and last year’s 
administrative assistance by the Council;

 how well the audit had progressed; and

 the early deadlines and how this impacted on both EY 
and Council Officers.

The Chairman, on behalf of Members thanked EY for their 
report.

It was moved by Councillor L Radford and seconded by 
Councillor J Wyllie that the Auditor’s Results Report be 
received.  After being put to the meeting and and a vote 
taken the recommendation to receive the report was 

Page 10



PAG PAG

CARRIED

RESOLVED - that the External Auditor’s report be 
received.

116  ANNUAL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS

The Executive Member for Finance and Support Services 
submitted a report setting out the background to the 
2017/18 Statement of Accounts.  The report also provided 
details of the overall financial position in the Balance Sheet 
and revenue activities for the General Fund and Collection 
Fund.  

The Head of Strategic Finance and Property provided a 
summary of the report.  She commented that the accounts 
would not be signed off until all the work had been 
completed and asked that the task of signing off the 
accounts be delegated to the Head of Strategic Finance 
and Property.  This was supported.  

It was moved by Councillor J Wyllie and seconded by 
Councillor T Stowe that the recommendations, including 
delegated authority to sign off the accounts to the Head of 
Strategic Finance and Property, as detailed be supported.  
After being put to the meeting and a vote taken, the 
recommendations were declared CARRIED.

RESOLVED - that (A) the Council’s Statement of 
Accounts for the financial year 2017/18 be approved 
and the Chairman of Performance, Audit and 
Governance Scrutiny Committee be authorised to 
sign thereof at the conclusion of the meeting; 

(B) the Letter of Representation be approved for 

Page 11



PAG PAG

signing by the Chairman of Performance, Audit and 
Governance Scrutiny Committee and the Head of 
Strategic Finance and Property; and

(C) the Head of Strategic Finance and Property be 
given delegated authority to sign off the accounts.

117  GENERAL FUND REVENUE AND CAPITAL OUTTURN 2017/18 
AND MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLAN 2019/20: UPDATE

The Executive Member for Finance and Support Services 
submitted a report on the General Fund Revenue Outturn 
for 2017/18 and the Medium Term Financial Plan 2019/20 
update.  The report also provided a summary of financing 
arrangements for the 2017/18 Capital Outturn and the 
updated 2018/19 capital budget and approved slippage for 
2017/18.  The Head of Strategic Finance and Property 
provided a summary of the report and was happy to report 
that the budget was underspent by £7k as a result of 
fluctuations between services.

The report was debated at length when Members sought 
and were provided with clarification on a number of issues:

 the depressed rental income on Charrington’s House, 
and the fact that Officers had secured more tenants 
which would impact positively on the Balance Sheet;

 PCN income and a request that the Head of 
Operations write to Members regarding the number 
of successful appeals; 

 an overspend in the Democratic Services salaries 
budget;

Page 12



PAG PAG

 the underspend achieved of £223k within Housing 
and Health and within a year and the possibility of a 
service review;

 assurances that the first quarter health check in 
September would provide greater levels of details in 
terms of the Council’s capital and revenue position;

 the sum of £633k towards demolition costs for the 
Causeway building and how these would be funded. 
The Head of Strategic Finance and Property advised 
that this was a reserve fund held for this type of 
expenditure. 

 the overspend of £33k in Planning given recruitment 
difficulties and the need to keep this under review;

 Legal and General’s ownership of Jackson Square in 
Bishop’s Stortford and the Council’s management 
role; 

 the capital budget overspend of £600k in respect of 
the Causeway building;

 the slippage figure in relation to the Fire Suppression 
unit at Buntingford Depot which remained 
unchanged and was not split between the two 
authorities; 

 the overspend of £297k against the Business and 
Technology Service budget, whether this was a one 
off because of under investment in previous years 
and was this related to cyber security?  The Head of 
Strategic Finance and Property undertook to provide 
a breakdown to Members;

Page 13



PAG PAG

 an underspend in terms of £51k in relation to interest 
and investment income; and

 the Council’s receipt of  £325k funding.

The Committee Chairman sought and was provided with 
assurance that the Council’s level of reserves was now at 
an appropriate level and there was resilience in their 
usage.

Councillor J Wyllie reminded Members that it was the 
Council who refunded their parking fees when shopping at 
Sainsburys.  Members supported the suggestion that the 
public be made aware that it was not Sainsburys who 
refunded  shoppers  their parking fees but East Herts 
Council made possible by the residents of East 
Hertfordshire.  

It was moved by Councillor J Wyllie and seconded by 
Councillor A Alder that the recommendations, as detailed 
be supported.  After being put to the meeting and a vote 
taken, the recommendations were declared CARRIED.

RESOLVED – that the Executive be advised that (A) 
the General Fund revenue outturn of £7k 
underspend be transferred to the General reserve; 
and

(B) the capital budgets of £1.496M be re-profiled 
from 2017/18 capital programme to 2018/19 
programme to fund ongoing capital schemes.

Page 14



PAG PAG

118  SHARED INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE (SIAS) - ASSURANCE 
STATEMENT AND ANNUAL REPORT 2017 – 18                         

The Shared Internal Audit Service (SIAS) submitted a report 
summarising their opinion on the adequacy and 
effectiveness of the Council’s control environment, the 
outcomes of self-assessments required against accounting 
standards, and SIAS’s performance in delivering the 
Council’s audit plan.  The report presented the 2018/19 
Audit Charter.  The report also sought management 
assurance that the scope and resources for the internal 
audit were not subjected to inappropriate limitations in 
2017/18.  The SIAS Officer provided a summary of the 
report.

The Committee Chairman sought and was provided with 
assurances regarding the Council’s non-financial systems.  
The Head of Strategic Finance and Property explained how 
the service worked with SIAS to review riskier issues to 
make sure proper controls were in place.  

The Committee Chairman sought and was provided with 
clarification on:

 the six audit projects which were classified as “not 
assessed”; and

 the limited assurances provided in relation to cyber 
security.

The Committee Chairman suggested that Members might 
wish to receive more information in relation to wider IT 
issues and particularly in relation to cyber security.  This 
was supported.

Page 15



PAG PAG

In response to a query from Councillor J Wyllie regarding 
the overall effectiveness of SIAS and audit delivery, the 
Head of Strategic Finance and Property assured Members 
of the good working relationship with SIAS.

It was moved by Councillor L Radford and seconded by 
Councillor A Alder that the recommendations, as detailed 
be supported.  After being put to the meeting and a vote 
taken, the recommendations were declared CARRIED.

RESOLVED – that (A) the Annual Assurance 
Statement and Internal Audit Annual report be 
noted;

(B) the results of the self-assessment required by 
the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) 
and the Quality Assurance Improvement 
Programme (QAIP) be noted;

(C) the Audit Charter for 2018/19 be approved; and

(D) confirmed that the scope and resources for the 
internal audit had not been subject to inappropriate 
limitations in 2017/18.

119  SHARED INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICES (SIAS) - PROGRESS 
REPORT ON AUDIT PLAN 2018 – 19                                   

The Shared Internal Audit Service submitted a report 
detailing the internal audit progress in delivering the audit 
plan as at 6 July 2018, proposed amendments to the 
approved Internal Audit Plan, and the status of previously 
agreed internal audit recommendations.  Additionally, the 
report provided an update on performance management 
information up to 6 July 2018 and detailed revised 

Page 16



PAG PAG

assurance definitions / priority levels.  The SIAS Officer 
provided a summary of the report.

Members referred to the issue of cyber security and the 
limited assurance level which had been given.  The status 
of high priority recommendations were discussed including 
IT Disaster Recovery (Post Incident).  The Committee 
Chairman suggested that Members be provided with 
further information on cyber security and within the 
context of disaster recovery and that this be added to the 
Work Programme for 2018/19.  This was supported.

It was moved by Councillor P Ballam and seconded by 
Councillor J Wyllie that the recommendations, including the 
inclusion of cyber security and disaster recovery in the 
work programme, as detailed be supported.  After being 
put to the meeting and a vote taken, the recommendations 
were declared CARRIED.

RESOLVED - that (A) the Internal Audit Progress 
report be noted.

(B) the amendments to the Audit Plan as at 6 July 
2018 be approved;

(C) the status of high priority recommendations be 
noted;

(D) the revised assurance definitions / priority 
levels be noted; and

(E) the Work Programme be amended by the 
inclusion of cyber security and disaster recovery. 

Page 17



PAG PAG

120  ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2017/18 : UPDATE

The Leader of the Council submitted a report presenting 
the 2017/18 Annual Governance Statement and the 
2018/19 Annual Governance Statement Action Plan.  The 
Head of Strategic Finance and Property provided a 
summary of the report.  

Councillor T Page referred to IT Disaster Recovery and the 
suggestion that both Councils should perform a business 
impact assessment on the loss of IT and queried the 
suggestions that Councils should define their respective 
risk appetites on a service basis.  The Insurance and 
Business Risk Advisor explained what actions were taken in 
relation to the business continuity plan and which services 
were determined as priorities.  He explained that he was 
currently reviewing business continuity templates which 
would be considered by Leadership Team.

RESOLVED – that (A) the Annual Governance 
Statement 2017/18 be noted; and

(B) the Annual Governance Statement Action Plan 
2018/19 be noted.

121  RISK MANAGEMENT ANNUAL REPORT

The Head of Strategic Finance and Property submitted a 
report on the content of the Strategic Risk Register for 
2018/19.  The Head of Strategic Finance and Property 
provided a summary of the report.

In response to a query from the Committee Chairman, the 
Insurance and Business Risk Advisor provided an 
explanation of the numbers used in the matrix, 1 being 

Page 18



PAG PAG

remote and 4 being likely to occur.  He explained that 
some risks could be managed down with controls but 
others could not.

It was moved by Councillor R Brunton and seconded by 
Councillor K Crofton that the recommendations, as 
detailed be supported.  After being put to the meeting and 
a vote taken, the recommendations were declared 
CARRIED.

RESOLVED – that the Executive advised that 
Members had reviewed and received the Strategic 
Risk Register.

122  WORK PROGRAMME 2018/19

The Chairman of Performance, Audit and Governance 
Scrutiny Committee submitted a report setting out the 
committee’s future work programme.  

The Committee Chairman commented that in the past, 
Members had considered a request to have a presentation 
by Housing Associations which would cover things such as 
repairs and general issues of concern.  Members were 
reminded that presentations had been reported to the 
former Community Scrutiny Committee and that future 
reports would be within the remit of Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee.  Councillor M Allen undertook to submit a 
request for this via a Scrutiny Proposal Form.

The Committee Chairman explained that he had asked the 
Head of Democratic and Legal Services for an update 
regarding the employment of a Scrutiny Officer who had 
advised that the matter was in hand and the content of the 
role was being reviewed.  Councillor J Wyllie stated that it 

Page 19



PAG PAG

was critical that Members had a Scrutiny Officer in post to 
support them in the role of scrutiny.  

Arising from consideration of reports elsewhere on the 
agenda, Members were reminded that they had already 
supported the inclusion onto the work programme, of a 
report on disaster recovery following a cyber-attack and 
the impact this might have in relation to the business 
impact /continuity plan.  This was supported. 

Members referred to Essential Reference Paper “B” in 
terms of the items to be scoped / added, specifically in 
relation to Section 106 Agreements (review of the 
management of Section 106 payments).  Councillor P 
Ballam reminded Members that when this had been 
discussed at an earlier meeting, it was also about whether 
agreements were appropriate.  Councillor T Page 
suggested that a financial statement detailing the current 
position be provided for scrutiny and which provided 
expiration details.  This was supported.

It was moved by Councillor T Page and seconded by 
Councillor S Cousins that the draft work programme, be 
amended by the inclusion of :

 a report on disaster recovering following a cyber-
attack and in relation to the business impact 
continuity / assessment; and

 a report on Section 106 agreements including a 
financial statement detailing the summary position 
be reported to the November meeting. 

After being put to the meeting and a vote taken, the 
recommendations, including the amendments, were 

Page 20



PAG PAG

declared CARRIED.

RESOLVED - that the draft work programme as 
amended, for Performance, Audit and Governance 
Scrutiny Committee, as now detailed, be approved. 

 
123  EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

Councillor M Pope moved, and Councillor J Wyllie 
seconded, a motion that under Section 100 (A)(4) of the 
Local Government Act 1972, the  press and public be 
excluded from the meeting during the discussion of Minute 
124 – Insurance Options for 2019 on the grounds that it 
involved the likely disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in paragraph 3 of part 1 of Schedule 12A of the 
said Act.  After being put to the meeting, and a vote taken, 
the motion was declared CARRIED.

RESOLVED - that under Section 100 (A)(4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972 the press and public be 
excluded from the meeting during the discussion 
of (in part) Minute 124 (Insurance Options for 2019) 
on the grounds that it involved the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in 
paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the said Act.

124  INSURANCE OPTIONS FOR 2019

The Executive Member for Finance and Support Services 
submitted a report seeking views on the Council’s future 
insurance arrangements as the Council’s long term 
agreement ended in 2019.  

The Head of Strategic Finance and Property provided a 
summary of the report and drew Members’ attention to 

Page 21



PAG PAG

the Essential Reference Paper “B” containing exempt 
information which set out three options available to the 
Council and the risks and benefits of each option.  The 
Insurance and Business Risk Advisor provided an update in 
relation to the Council’s relationship with the Local 
Government Association Mutual which was in its early 
development stages.

Councillor G Cutting summarised his involvement in the 
process explaining that he had attended meetings at the 
LGA which was moving towards an operational board and 
engaging professional consultants.  He explained that at 
the present time, there were a number of unknowns and 
issues to resolve which could impact on the premiums 
each Council would have to pay.  

Councillor Cutting explained that there was a great deal of 
encouragement to commit to becoming a founder Member 
but that for the moment, the Council should take a 
prudent approach over the next couple of years, and until 
the unknowns had been resolved.  He suggested that the 
Council could present its “book” for soft market testing on 
its portfolio but that this could impact negatively on the 
LGA Mutual and any competitive rate they might offer in 
the future.

Councillor J Wyllie stated that he was happy to support the 
extension of the contract for a maximum of two years and 
while Members sought further information regarding the 
progress of the LGA Mutual.  Councillor L Radford 
supported this suggestion. 

The Insurance and Business Risk Advisor summarised 
some of the Council’s key insurance requirements which 
was split between eight insurance companies.  Councillor P 

Page 22



PAG PAG

Boylan suggested that the Council could increase the 
excesses to lower the premium rates.  The Insurance and 
Business Risk Advisor agreed that this was a possibility and 
that the Council was doing more self-funding and that an 
actuarial review will be commissioned when appropriate to 
help determine the optimum balance between insured and 
retained risk.  He stated that he had had a number of 
meetings with the Head of Strategic Finance and Property 
on the options in going forward.

Councillor G Cutting explained that the Council could be 
declaring its intention to establish itself as a founding 
Member by submitting its insurance “book”.  The Head of 
Strategic Finance and Property suggested that the Council 
should continue to attend meetings and correspond with 
the Mutual for the time being.  Councillor S Cousins 
suggested that the Council should stick to the status quo.

The Committee Chairman commented that given 
Members’ views and the on the advice submitted, the 
Council should take a prudent approach regarding its 
future insurance arrangements.  

It was moved by Councillor S Cousins and seconded by 
Councillor P Boylan that :

 the Council’s insurance contacts be extended for a 
maximum of two years, and 

 Officers submit a review in one year and receive an 
update on the Council’s position as an uncommitted 
founding Member and that the Executive be advised 
that the recommendations as detailed be supported.  

After being put to the meeting and a vote taken, the 

Page 23



PAG PAG

recommendations now detailed,  were declared CARRIED. 

RESOLVED - that  the Executive (A) be advised that:  

(A) the Council’s insurance contracts be extended 
for a maximum of up to two years; and

(B) Officers submit a review in one year and an 
update on the Council’s position as an uncommitted 
founding Member of the LGA Mutual.

The meeting closed at 9.22 pm

Chairman ............................................................

Date ............................................................

Page 24



EAST HERTS COUNCIL

PERFORMANCE, AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – 
4 SEPTEMBER 2018                                                                                       

REPORT BY EXECUTIVE MEMBER FOR HEALTH AND WELLBEING

ANNUAL LEISURE CONTRACT PERFORMANCE REPORT FOR 2017

WARD(S) AFFECTED:  ALL  

Purpose/Summary of Report

 To present the annual review of the council’s ten year leisure 
contract with Sport and Leisure Management Ltd (SLM) – 
trading as Everyone Active (EA).

RECOMMENDATIONS FOR PERFORMANCE, AUDIT AND 
GOVERNANCE SCRUTINY:  That:

(A) The Annual Report be received; and

(B) The views of the PAG Scrutiny Committee be noted.

1.0 Background 

1.1 On 1 January 2009, following a competitive tender process, the 
council entered in to a ten year leisure management contract 
with the leisure provider Sport and Leisure Management Ltd 
(SLM), trading as Everyone Active (EA).

1.2 This eighth annual review covers two main elements:
a) Performance in relation to the specification of the 

contract.

Page 25

Agenda Item 5



b) Qualitative successes and improvements.

2.0 Report

2.1 Performance review information is detailed in Essential 
Reference Paper ‘B’ and sets out EA’s performance against 
the main elements of the contract. The section below is a 
summary of the contract performance including customer 
throughput, customer satisfaction, financial performance, 
public satisfaction, health and safety management and added 
social value and investments.

Performance

2.2 Customer Throughput

2.2.1 The council has a long history of encouraging and improving 
opportunities for individuals to engage in sports and physical 
activity through the provision of its sports and leisure facilities, 
all of which can help people to live a healthy and active 
lifestyle, underpinned by the council’s commitment to health 
and wellbeing. 

2.2.2 A key measure in assessing the performance of the contractor 
is the number of customers using the five facilities.

2.2.3 Across the leisure centres there were a total 1,122,562 
recorded visits in 2017 compared to 1,007,800 in 2016; which 
is a 10.23% increase overall and includes:

 casual swimming
 gym
 group exercise classes
 pool parties
 one to one swim lessons
 Swimming lessons
 school lessons 
 crèche usage

Page 26



 outdoor activities including:
 tennis
 bowls
 football

The attendance figures do not include swimming spectators, 
swimming school or football pitches and football spectators. The 
increasing footfall does have an impact on the infrastructure of the 
facilities such as increased cleaning and maintenance demands. 

2.2.4 Casual ‘pay and play’ swimming attendances can be broken 
down by age group:

Swim Attendances 2016 2017
Year on Year 
change % change

Under 16's 47,406 46,006 -1,400 -3.04%
16-59yrs 87,899 81,414 -6,485 -7.96%
60+ yrs 23,664 25,519 1,855 7.27%
Totals 158,968 152,939 -6,029 -3.94%

2.2.5 Interventions to address previous reductions in the 16 – 59 
year old age group have had limited success in 2017.  These 
included the freezing of under 16’s swimming prices, repair of 
the Hartham pool boom to provide a third swimming space for 
water confidence sessions and investing in a new pool 
inflatable at Grange Paddocks. The 16-59 years attendances 
reduced by 6,485 visits, some of which is a result of the 3 week 
pool closure at Hartham where £42K was invested in re-lining 
both pools. This closure resulted in 1,837 less adult swims 
when comparing attendances in December 2016. 
However the success of 60+ sessions like the Young at Heart 
session has helped to generate a 7.27% increase in 60+ 
attendances. 

2.2.6 Overall there has been a 3.94 % decline in pool attendances 
across the sites compared to 2016; however this is less than 
the reported 6% reduction in swimming decline nationally, 
despite swimming still consistently ranked by adults as one of 
the most popular forms of regular physical activity. Officers 

Page 27



and EA are continuing to look at ways of developing swimming 
by:

 Increasing the opportunity for more public swimming space 
 Promoting the centres and service through social media 

advertising and community outreach activities.
 Freezing of junior casual swim sessions price for a second 

financial year in a row.
 All participants on the Swim Scheme from July 2017 have been 

offered free swimming sessions, which benefits around 3,125 
young adults in East Herts. 

 Continued investment in the facilities where appropriate, for 
example the re-lining of the pools at Hartham.

2.2.7 Overall swimming visits for 2017 were 152,939  which is 
significantly greater than the baseline contractual target figure 
set at the beginning of the contract in 2009, which was 135,320 
visits + 1% increase per year; a target of 147,997 for 2017. 

2.2.8 Gym attendances are broken down by age group and activity:

Gym 
Attendances 2016 2017

Year on 
Year 
Change % change

Under 16's 10,412 14,224 3,812 26.80%
16-60yrs 151,710 163,496 11,786 7.21%
60+ yrs 21,196 26,973 5,777 21.42%
Group Exercise 114,346 121,540 7,194 5.92%
Totals 183,318 204,693 21,375 10.44%

Group exercise attendances have risen by 5.92%, supported by 
additional classes at Grange Paddocks. 

There has been a 26.8% increase in attendances to under 16’s 
activities, supported by the addition of teen gym sessions, 
increasing the number of sessions and the customer base size; 
particularly at Grange Paddocks where the attendances have risen 
from 2,365 in 2016 to 5,536 in 2017. At Hartham the growth is less 
with 6,389 in 2016 and 6,810 in 2017.

Page 28



With the focus on links with the Everyone Active Forever Fit 
sessions and partnership with the Forever Active East Herts 
movement, the 60+ usage has seen significant growth in 
attendances. 

2.2.9 The Forever Fit programme is developing the ‘Active 4 Life’ 
exercise referral classes at both Hartham and Grange 
Paddocks gyms, including:

 Maintaining the ‘Healthy Herts’ Cardiac Rehab Phase IV Referral
 Creating walking sports, with the launch of the Walking Football 

sessions in May 2017 and Walking Netball in July 2017 at 
Hartham Leisure Centre
The ‘Get Up and Try’ adult swim sessions for new swimmers.

 ‘Come and Try’ events, in partnership with Forever Active East 
Herts to drive up 50+ participation

 Links and promotion with Herts Sports Partnership and the 
‘This Girl Can’ promotions and various activity days throughout 
the calendar year

 In 2017 EA launched their smartphone ‘app’ which allows users 
to book into classes and swimming quickly as well as view the 
latest local facility updates and news. At Hartham and Grange 
Paddocks approximately 50% of members book in at the 
centres and approximately 40% via the app. This compares to 
the joint use facilities where the majority of bookings (97%) are 
currently made in-centre.

Annual and direct debit memberships finished the calendar 
year on 6,437 in December 2017, with average members at 
month 6,413 in 2017 compared to 6,460 at month in 2016. The 
£35K investment in a modest refurbishment of the gym at 
Hartham has helped to improve performance.

2.3 Customer Satisfaction

2.3.1 The five sites carry out biannual Customer Satisfaction Exit 
Surveys. In September/October 2017 the surveys were 

Page 29



conducted using the online survey service of EA’s Atremo 
system to collate the feedback for the survey rather than a 
paper based system. The data is automatically collated as is 
the analysis and information from the surveys is used to help 
develop the management and performance of the centre and 
is incorporated into the centre business plans and site 
improvement plans.

2.3.2 These digital surveys were supported by the use of tablets in 
the centres. At the larger sites 25% of total responses came 
from the email links and at the dual use sites this was 3%.

2.3.3 Results indicate that the ‘Overall customer satisfaction at all 
pools’ range from ‘Good’ to ‘Excellent’. The ‘Overall experience’ 
grade is ‘Excellent’ (92%). Detailed results can be found in 
Essential Reference Paper ‘C’.

2.3.4 From a cleanliness perspective the scores from the surveys in 
2017 and 2016 have increased across the contract by 8%. 
Contract cleaners have been employed to complete end of day 
cleaning since late 2016 to focus on improving the customer 
experience in the changing areas.

2.3.5 Notably the overall performance of Grange Paddocks following 
the 2016 action plan has seen a marked increase in customer 
satisfaction. The 2016 overall satisfaction score was 75% and in 
2017 this is 89%, with improvement in cleanliness growing 
from 66% in 2016 to 78% in 2017.

2.3.6 Equally there is an increase for all of the dual use sites on 
overall satisfaction with the scores for Ward Freman increasing 
from 80% in 2016 to 92% in 2017. Leventhorpe increased 85% 
to 93% and Fanshawe from 80% to 90%.  

2.3.7 Comments made regarding Fanshawe include; renovation of 
the building specifically in the gym and changing rooms, 
investment in new kit and a refresh of the centre in general. 

Page 30



2.3.8 Grange Paddocks comments include: inadequate size of the 
changing rooms and showers, dry side changing rooms 
separate from swimming changing rooms, family changing 
rooms, more studio space needed and more available lesson 
time, a bigger gym, more free weights, better reception area, 
expand crèche availability, upgrade pool, requests for spa 
pool, more car parking in the football season, and cleanliness.

2.3.9 Hartham comments include: request for the boom to be 
removed, revamp of the pool floor (which was completed in 
December 2017 post survey), praise for new strength 
equipment, car parking being too busy and cars parking on the 
roundabout, lane swimming etiquette and heating in changing 
areas.

2.3.10 Leventhorpe comments include: More swimming times, day 
time aqua and swimming sessions, disabled changing facilities 
on poolside, better showers, increase size of gym, new gym 
equipment, spectators area, bigger changing facilities, and a 
refurbishment.

2.3.11 Ward Freman comments include: total refurbishment, build a 
gym, upgrade changing facilities, better showers, swimming 
only membership and car parking being insufficient.

2.3.12 In response to the previous survey results from 2017 and 
client audits, EA commenced a programme of works working 
with the council to improve the sites. These have included:

 Relining the main and small pool tanks completed in 
December 2017 at Hartham Leisure Centre

 Replacement of showerhead fittings at Fanshawe 
 Investment in the gym refresh at Hartham Leisure Centre, to 

provide a separate mixed area for strength training which is 
less intimidating and more female friendly. More strength 
equipment and free weight areas 

 Review of Group Exercise classes and timetabling which has 
seen a programme of taster sessions for classes and links with 
the Forever Active East Herts programme. 

Page 31



 Review of poolside cleaning standards and training for the 
teams

 Change of contract cleaners at Grange Paddocks, regular 
review meetings with the contract cleaner at Hartham.

 Renewal of service agreement for locker repairs in the 
changing areas across all sites.

2.3.13 There is always scope for further improvement and officers 
will continue to work with EA on maintaining and developing 
satisfaction levels at all sites.

2.4 Financial Performance

2.4.1 Performance Indicator EHPI2 ‘Net cost of the Leisure Service 
per user’ is the primary cost indicator for the service and 
reflects the cost to the council of running leisure centres 
(including on-costs).

2.4.2 The estimated ‘Net cost of the Leisure Service per user’ has 
been calculated as £0.22 per visit in 2017; compared with 
£0.75 per visit in 2016 and £0.99 per visit in 2015. In 2017 the 
Leisure Management Fee to EA was £253,472.76.

Qualitative Successes and Improvements

2.5 Public Satisfaction

2.5.1 In 2017 Hartham and Grange Paddocks completed the 
National Benchmarking Services (NBS) for Leisure Centres. 
This is a nationally recognised service, conducted in 
partnership with Sheffield Hallum University and Leisure Net 
Solutions. 

2.5.2 The benchmarking service works in two ways; there is a core 
survey which is conducted independently from the leisure 
centre teams which is a sample of 345 users. There is also a 
financial / management return which encompasses usage 
performance, financial performance on maintenance, energy 
and a range of other key performance indicators.

Page 32



2.5.3 From a swimming perspective, the NBS reviews customers 
overall swimming experience. For Grange Paddocks the score 
was 4.03 and for Hartham the score was 4.12, which are both 
around the benchmarking score of 4.36 for the industry.

2.5.4 From an overall satisfaction perspective, Hartham achieved 4.21 
and Grange Paddocks 4.30, with the benchmarking score for 
this being 4.43. 

2.5.5 EA also use the Net Promotor system to assess performance 
and satisfaction. This is different to NBS, but considering them 
together can build a bigger picture of performance. At Grange 
Paddocks the score is 17.36 and Hartham 11.8 which are below 
the benchmark EA set themselves of 17.99.  

2.6 Health and Safety

2.6.1 There were in excess of 1.1 million visits during 2017 and there 
were 211 reportable accidents; an annual accident rate of 2.87 
per 10,000 visits compared to 2.33 per 10,000.00 visits in 2016.  
Generally across the contract the accident rate per 10,000 
visits has been lower than EA’s corporate objective which is to 
achieve less than 5 accidents per 10,000 visits. 

2.6.2 All swimming pools are microbiologically tested by the council 
on a quarterly basis as well as independently tested by 
Kingfisher Environmental Services Ltd on behalf of EA on a 
monthly basis. All Kingfisher reports are satisfactory and highly 
satisfactory.

2.6.3 In addition to formal set monitoring arrangements, council 
officers undertake a mixture of monthly unannounced and 
announced inspections reviewing and recording service 
delivery, marketing, health & safety and monitoring procedure 
standards. These inspections shown an acceptable level of 
performance in the quality of the leisure service delivered 
across the areas inspected.

Page 33



2.7 Added Social Value

2.7.1 Throughout the year EA were involved in working with 
charities, local partners and the community including events 
such as:

 Juvenile Diabetes Research Foundation Ltd (JDRF), the type 1
diabetes charity, supporting World Diabetes day with Bake Off’s,
football competitions and colleague activities

 Mind charity support – linked to World Mental Health days
 Links with Herts Carers, where all sites provide discounted 

access to carers and disability users
EA open days offering:

 Free swimming
 Free gym sessions 
 EHC’s Love Parks Week offering fun activities outside
 Colouring competitions – Judged by Rebecca Adlington for 

swimming 
 Golden ticket hunts to win annual memberships
 Aspire Swim Chanel Challenge
 National Fitness Day in September
 Supporting and attending the Ware Town Carnival 
 Celebrated Women’s Sport Week in June with free activities for 

women of all ages and abilities
 Events for ‘This Girl Can’ promotion in June 17
 Partnership with Grove Cottage to support and provide events 

in Bishop’s Stortford such as the Fun day event and Christmas 
Santa Dash

 World Cancer Day open day and activities sessions
 Holding swimming gala for the children on the Learn to Swim 

Programmes across all of the sites.

2.7.2 Working with Grove Cottage, EA hosted the annual Santa Dash 
and Reindeer Run with over 100 people running dressed up as 
Santa.

Page 34



2.7.3 Hartham held a Legacy Day, where 400 local school children 
from the area were invited to participate in a sports day style 
event on Hartham Common. 

2.7.4 EA set a Community Pledge for 2017/18, so from April 17 until 
March 18, they commit to drive the following areas

 500 corporate colleagues to become active by the end of 
March 18 - 782 people were engaged through this 

 500 more students active by end of March 18 – 499 over 16’s 
and 189 under 16’s to date

 Train 30 local Lifeguards through funded spaces on their 
lifeguard courses by March 18 – 31 new colleagues were 
trained

 Recruit new apprentices by March 18 – 5 new apprentices 
were recruited.

2.7.5 EA work with officers to further develop the Forever Active East 
Herts ‘learn to swim’ scheme and 79 participants attended 589 
times in 2017.

2.7.6 Both Grange Paddocks and Hartham offer:

 free swimming sessions to people with disabilities and their
carers 

 Locations for the delivery of externally managed Pulmonary 
Rehabilitation classes in partnership with the council and the 
Primary Care Trust.

2.8 Investments

2.8.1 There is an on-going maintenance programme that requires 
planned preventative maintenance as well as a capital 
Investment programme. This programme of works helps to 
maintain and enhance the facilities.

2.8.2 In 2017 the council spent £113,833.27 on the on-going 
maintenance and enhancement of the leisure facilities. Works 
included:

Page 35



 Pool filtration works at Hartham  
 Redesign of the Hartham Pavilion, with the creation of the new 

public toilets and a revised café seating area. 

2.8.3 EA continue to invest within the facilities:
 Gym refresh at Hartham Leisure centre in August / September 

which included re flooring in several areas of the main gym and 
redecoration 

 New pool inflatable at Grange Paddocks in November 
 LED phase of pool lighting at Hartham 
 New pool lining and marking for both main and learner pools at 

Hartham 
 Refurbishment of pool vacuums at Grange Paddocks and 

Hartham 
 Redecoration of the Studio and Reception areas at Hartham
 Redecoration of football changing rooms at Grange Paddocks 

2.8.4 With the council, EA continues to work to reduce energy 
consumption across all sites and therefore reduce operating 
costs. CO2 reductions will contribute to achieving the council’s 
carbon reduction targets, and investments include:

 Installation of non-half hourly meters for energy management 
for gas monitoring across all sites

 Creation of an online portal to review energy consumption to 
identify consumption trends and patterns 

 EA’s 4’s plan, ‘reuse, reduce, recycle and replace’ environmental 
action plan where any lights that are replaceable will be 
replaced with lower energy units e.g. periodic upgrading of 
lights to LED units in the pool hall at Hartham. 

2.8.5 The Display Energy Certificates (DEC) is an operational energy 
rating that identifies the actual energy use of a building and 
compares his against the energy use for a benchmark building 
of the same type. At Hartham in 2017 there was a leak from 
the pool plant room to the main pool, which had an impact on 
the ‘Energy Performance Operational Rating’ of the centre to a 
C banding (55 units). Had this not occurred it is possible this 
may have been lower, and this is still an improvement when 

Page 36



compared with the previous C band (81 units) attained in 2016.  
Total CO2 emissions were 456 tonnes/year in 2017 which is a 
reduction from 584 tonnes/year in 2016. 

2.8.6 At Grange Paddocks the ‘Energy Performance Operational 
Rating’ has maintained its D band (99 units), which is just 
above the typical banding for a facility of this nature. Total CO2 
emissions are consistent with previous years and are just 
under 485 tonnes/year. This is a slight increase from 2016 
performance. 

2.8.7 At Fanshawe the ‘Energy Performance Operational Rating’ was 
measured as a D banding (94 units), which is above the typical 
banding for a facility of this nature. Total CO2 emissions were 
approximately 290 tonnes/year.

2.8.8 At Leventhorpe the ‘Energy Performance Operational Rating’ 
was measured as a B banding (43 units), which is above the 
typical banding for a facility of this nature. Total CO2 emissions 
were approximately 120 tonnes/year. This is being reviewed 
and updated and EA have not received the results at this 
present time.

2.8.9 For buildings over 500m2 but less than 1000m2 the DEC is 
valid for 10 years (until 2025). Ward Freman Pool fits into this 
category and the ‘Energy Performance Operational Rating’ was 
measured as a D banding (100 units) which is around the 
typical banding for a facility of this nature. Total CO2 emissions 
were approximately 270 tonnes/year.  

3.0 Implications/Consultations

3.1 Information on any corporate issues and consultation 
associated with this report can be found within Essential 
Reference Paper ‘A’.  

Background Papers

Page 37



None.

Contact Member: Councillor Eric Buckmaster – Executive Member 
for Health and  Wellbeing.
eric.buckmaster@eastherts.gov.uk

Contact Officer: Jess Khanom, Head of Operations, Extn: 1693.
jess.khanom@eastherts.gov.uk

Report Author: Steven Dupoy – Leisure & Environment Service 
Manager
steven.dupoy@eastherts.gov.uk

Page 38

mailto:eric.buckmaster@eastherts.gov.uk
mailto:jess.khanom@eastherts.gov.uk
mailto:steven.dupoy@eastherts.gov.uk


ESSENTIAL REFERENCE PAPER ‘A’

IMPLICATIONS/CONSULTATIONS

Contribution to 
the Council’s 
Corporate 
Priorities/ 
Objectives 

Priority 1 – Improve the health and wellbeing of our 
communities 

Priority 2 – Enhance the quality of people’s lives 

Consultation: None

Legal: None

Financial: There are no additional financial implications for this 
report

Human 
Resource:

None

Risk 
Management:

None

Health and 
wellbeing – 
issues and 
impacts:

This contract supports the delivery of the council’s 
health and wellbeing agenda.

Equality Impact 
Assessment 
required:

N/A

Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank



ESSENTIAL REFERENCE PAPER ‘B’

Performance Review Information – Council set Performance Indicators to Measure Performance of Service

Main performance 
indicators

Frequency Current performance Target  Comment     

QUEST Plus Assessment – 
Sport England continuous 
improvement tool - to help 
enhance, improve and 
continue to improve the 
quality of service to 
customers

Biennial Grange Paddocks achieved a 
rating of ‘Very Good’ in March 
18 

Hartham is currently scheduled 
for October 18

‘Good’ banded 
result

Harthams last Quest score was 
‘Excellent’

National Benchmarking 
Service (NBS) - Sport England 
benchmarking service – an 
independent customer 
satisfaction survey

Biennial Hartham scored 4.21 out of 5 
for overall satisfaction 

Grange Paddocks scored 4.30 
out 5 for overall satisfaction  

2017 national 
benchmarking 
score was 
4.43

Grange Paddocks and Hartham 
continue to work on improving the 
NBS satisfaction score to achieve 
the national benchmark in 2019 
when it will be assessed

EHPI 1a  - % of customers 
satisfied with the service – All 
sites  

Biannual 2016 - 79% (Good)             
2017 - 88% (Excellent)

Excellent 
across all 
area’s

See Essential Reference Paper B 
for the whole contract over view

EHPI 1b - Overall Experience 
% of customers satisfied with 
the service – Leventhorpe

Biannual 2016 - 85% (Excellent)         
2017 - 93% (Excellent)         

Overall Experience
EHPI 1c - % of customers 
satisfied with the service – 
Hartham

Biannual 2016 - 78% (Good)               
2017 - 84% (Excellent)

Improvements have been 
supported through the investment 
in a modest refurbishment of gym 
equipment for £35K

Page 41



Main performance 
indicators

Frequency Current performance Target  Comment     

EHPI 1d - Overall Experience 
% of customers satisfied with 
the service – Fanshawe

Biannual 2016 - 80%  (Excellent)            
2017 - 87% (Excellent)

EHPI 1e - Overall Experience 
% of customers satisfied with 
the service – Ward Freman

Biannual 2016 - 80% (Excellent)              
2017 - 91% (Excellent)

EHPI 1f - Overall Experience
% of customers satisfied with 
the service – Grange 
Paddocks

Biannual 2016 - 75% (Good)                        
2017 - 83% (Good)

EHPI 3a - Usage: number of 
swims (under 16s)

quarterly / 
annually

2016 - 47,014              
2017 - 46,006
A reduction of 2.1% 

Note pool closure for 3 weeks 
for pool re-lining in December 
at Hartham,  effect on Dec 17 
usage:
Dec 16 - 662
Dec 17 - 270
A reduction of 392 visits

+1% per 
annum. 2010-
2017

Baseline established for 2009: 
46,800 pa. 
Target + 1% each year = 50,678
Achieved 46,006

Everyone Active report that there is 
a national decline in casual 
swimming usage across all of their 
contracts nationwide

To combat this, from July 2017, 
Everyone Active as part of their 
Learn to Swim Scheme has offered 
children on their swimming lesson 
programme free swimming.
They have been increasing the 

Page 42



Main performance 
indicators

Frequency Current performance Target  Comment     

promotion of swimming activities 
on social media and are 
developing a Swimming 
Development Officer role with the 
purpose of increasing swimming 
numbers and creating new pool 
based activities

EHPI 3b - Usage: number of 
swims (16 – 60)

Quarterly / 
annually

2016 - 87,821       
2017 - 81,414
A reduction of 7.9% 

Hartham pool closure effect on 
Dec usage:
Dec 16 2,846
Dec 17 1,276

Remove Dec from figures 
2016 – 84,975
2017- 80,138 – 5,669 decline - 
5.6%

+1% per 
annum, 2010 -
2017

Baseline established for 2009; 
70,317 pa
Target + 1% each year = 76,143
Achieved 81,414 

Everyone Active report that there is 
a national decline in casual 
swimming usage across all of their 
contracts nationwide.

To combat this, from July 2017, 
Everyone Active as part of their 
Learn to Swim Scheme has offered 
children on their swimming lesson 
programme free swimming.
They have been increasing the 
promotion of swimming activities 
on social media and are 
developing a Swimming 
Development Officer role with the 

Page 43



Main performance 
indicators

Frequency Current performance Target  Comment     

purpose of increasing swimming 
numbers and creating new pool 
based activities.

EHPI 3c - Usage: number of 
swims (60+)

Quarterly / 
annually

2016 - 23,664       
2017 - 25,519 
7.2% increase

Hartham pool closure effect on 
Dec usage:
Dec 2016 - 527
Dec 2017 - 260

+1% per 
annum, 2010 -
2017

Baseline established for 2009; 
18,203 pa 
Target + 1% each year = 19,711
Achieved 25,519

EHPI4a - Usage: Gym (16 – 60) Quarterly / 
annually

2016 - 151,710     
2017 - 163,469 
7.7% increase

+1% per 
annum, 2010-
2017

Baseline established for 2009; 
74,403 pa. 
Target + 1% each year = 80,568
Achieved 163,469

Note from Sept 18 the Strength 
room opened and allowed us to 
increase gym usage

EHPI4b - Usage: Gym (60+) quarterly / 
annually

2016 - 21,196      
2017 - 26,973
27.2% increase

+1% per 
annum, 2010-
2017

Baseline for 2009; 5,840 pa.
Target + 1% each year = 6,324
Achieved 26,973

EHPI2 - Net cost of the 
Leisure Service per user

annually 2016 - £0.75             
2017 - £0.65 
Total recorded visits for 2017
1,122,562

See Note 7

Page 44



Notes: 
1. The contract is measured through continuous improvement targets. 
2. Performance and other management and operational matters are monitored formally through monthly minuted meetings 

between client and contractor with quarterly strategic meetings at director level.
3. Monthly meetings are attended by EHC property and finance officers and where necessary the contractors property and 

finance colleagues.
4. In addition to formal set monitoring arrangements, the council’s Leisure Services Manager undertakes monthly unannounced 

inspections picking up on service delivery, marketing and Health & Safety and other indicators and several announced 
inspections.

5. Performance indicators relating to customer satisfaction are reported through the corporate management performance 
process, usage is reported through the corporate management performance process (as tracked by Covalent).

6. Reporting for the Leisure performance indicators is based on the calendar year i.e. from 1 January to 31 December; this will 
be coterminous with the contract start date.

7. Calculated by dividing the probable net expenditure for Leisure Services in 2017, £732,972.30, by the 1,122,562 recorded 
visits. ‘Net cost of the Leisure Service per user’, includes those attending the gym, group exercise classes, casual swimming, 
pool parties, school, private and Everyone Active swim lessons and outdoor activities including; tennis, bowls and football and 
crèche. The primary cost indicator for the service reflects the total cost to the council of running leisure centres (including on-
costs) and is in line with the way the council calculates the unit costs for other contracts such as Waste Services. This 
performance indicator is comparable with the 2015 performance indicator. The management fee has seen no significant 
increase but the recorded numbers have increased, resulting in the reduction in net cost per user.

 

Page 45



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Note - Legend has been revised in agreement with Everyone Active as the previous banding was considered to be overly generous. 

ESSENTIAL REFERENCE PAPER ‘C’

Customer Exit Survey Summary Showing Customer Experience Levels in 2017

Customer satisfaction levels; fairly or very satisfied in service area.

 Fanshawe  
Grange 

Paddocks 
Hartham  Leventhorpe 

Ward 
Freman       

Overall 
customer 

satisfaction at 
all pools

       
If you use this facility regularly 
how satisfied are you with the 
centre, fairly or very satisfied 

Q1

87% 83% 84% 93% 91% 89%

Swimming - overall experience 
of service, fairly or very 

satisfied
72% 72% 83% 88% 79% 81%

Group Exercise 84% 89% 86% 88% NA 86%
Gym - overall experience, fairly 

or very satisfied
75% 85% 92% 96% NA 87%

Reception Area – fairly or very 
satisfied

93% 92% 88% 86% 89% 92%

Cleanliness -  fairly or very 
satisfied

88% 78% 81% 90% 91% 88%

Overall experience – Q6 92% 89% 92% 93% 92% 92%
Legend

Excellent 90%+
Good 80% - 89%
Fair 70% - 79%
Poor 60% - 69%

Very Poor Under 60%

Page 47



T
his page is intentionally left blank



EAST HERTS COUNCIL

PERFORMANCE, AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE – 4 SEPTEMBER 2018

REPORT BY THE HEAD OF STRATEGIC FINANCE AND PROPERTY AND 
HEAD OF COMMUNICATIONS, STRATEGY & POLICY                           

QUARTERLY CORPORATE HEALTHCHECK – QUARTER 1 JUNE 2018

WARD (S) AFFECTED:  All

______________________________________________

Purpose/Summary of Report:

 To provide a report on finance and performance monitoring for 
East Herts Council for 2018/19 as at 30 June 2018.

 The net revenue budget for 2018/19 is £9.779m as set out in table 
1, this is funded by Council Tax. The forecast expenditure at 30th 
June 2018 predicts a year end underspend of £16k.

 The revised capital budget for 2018/19 is £4.689m. 

 There are 33 Performance Indicators reported corporately in total 
at Q3. Within the 24 indicators that have a target set against them, 
six have failed to meet their targets by varying degrees. 

 Of the 9 Performance Indicators that are trend only data;- 

a) Three have improved compared to the previous reporting 
period
b) One was in a worse position than the previous reporting period
c) Five are new indicators with no previously reported data

Page 49

Agenda Item 6



RECOMMENDATIONS FOR PERFORMANCE AUDIT AND 
GOVERNANCE: That

(A) the projected revenue budget forecast underspend of 
£16k in 2018/19 be noted (paragraph 2.1) 

(B) the capital budget  for 2018/19 of £4.689m be noted 
(paragraph 6.1)

(C) the reported performance and actions for the period 
April 2018 to June 2018 be noted (paragraph 7)

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1 This is the finance and performance monitoring report for East 
Herts Council.

1.2 On 1 March 2018 Council approved a balanced budget for the 
2018/19 financial year. This report sets out the financial position 
for the year to date and provides forecasts for the outturn 
position.

1.3 The Council’s revenue budget is made up of 5 areas; these are 
shown in table 1 below. The report that follows provides details of 
the forecast outturn position against these areas.

Page 50



Table 1: 2018/19 revenue budget

  

Original 
Budget 
2018/19

Forecast 
outturn

Variance

  £'000 £'000 £'000
     

Total Net Cost of 
Services

 
13,896 13,880 (16)

Corporate Budgets 
Total

 
1,616 1,616 -

Net Use of Reserves  (408) (408) -

Funding  (5,325) (5,325) -
Net Revenue Spend 9779 9763 (16)
Funded by Council Tax  (9779) (9779) -
Underspend  - (16) (16)

1.4 Council approved the performance measures that would be 
monitored. This report sets out the year to date performance 
against those targets.

1.5 This report contains the following sections and Essential Reference 
Papers:

REPORT SECTIONS
2 Net Cost of Services
3 Corporate budgets
4 Reserves
5 Funding
6 Capital budgets
7 Performance analysis
8 Risk
9 Implications/consultations

  

Page 51



ESSENTIAL REFERENCE PAPERS
A Implications/Consultations
B Revenue budget
C Capital Monitor
D Performance monitoring

2 NET COST OF SERVICES

2.1 The Councils net cost of services budget for 2018/19 is £13.896m
An under spend of £16k is forecast in 2018/19. Table 2 overleaf 
shows this current forecast outturn position broken down by 
service area.

Page 52



Table 2: Revenue forecast outturn

   

Original 
Budget 
2018/19

Forecast 
outturn

Variance

   £'000 £'000 £'000
      

Chief Executive & Directors  
377 359 (18)

Communications, Strategy & 
Policy 

 
1,014 1,002 (12)

HR & Organisational 
Development  

491 485 (6)

Strategic Finance & Property  
1,796 1,790 (6)

Housing & Health  
2,222 2,174 (48)

Democratic and Legal  
1,236 1,238 2

Planning & Building Control  
594 718 124

Operations  
3,750 3,715 (35)

Shared Revenues & Benefits 
Service  

1,718 1,719 1

Revenues & benefits retained 
costs

(379) (425) (46)

Housing Benefit Subsidy  
(550) (550) -

Shared Business & Technology 
Services  

1,627 1,655 28

N
et

 C
os

t 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

s

Total Net Cost of Services  13,896  13,880 (16)

Page 53



2.2 Housing and Health

2.2.1 At this stage in the year and with the implementation of the new 
budget monitoring system, the forecast outturn has been based 
on activities spending at budget levels with the exception being 
that salaries, net of agency cover, are forecast to deliver a small 
underspend.

2.3 Planning 

2.3.1 A forecast overspend of £124k is reported against the Planning 
and building control service.  A saving target of £70k was 
identified for the service through the MTFP.  Of this, £10k 
additional income is achievable.  A further element of £30k, 
relating to salaries in the planning policy service area is not now 
going to be achieved due to the requirement for continuing 
planning policy and development implementation work as a result 
of the significant development released as a result of the 
adoption of the District Plan.   The remaining £30k saving related 
to salaries for administrative staff in the development 
management service area.  This element of saving has been 
achieved, however continuing recruitment difficulties relating to 
experienced and senior planning staff means there remains a 
requirement to engage interim and consultant staff.  This is 
placing an ongoing pressure on salary budgets in the service 
which is likely to offset savings which have been achieved.

2.4 Operations

2.4.1 A forecast underspend of £35k is shown against the Operations 
service.  This is due to salary underspends.

2.5    Revenues & Benefits Retained Costs

2.5.1 Grant income received from DWP is resulting in an 
overachievement in income for the Revenues & Benefits retained 
service budget.

Page 54



2.6 Shared Business & Technology Services

2.6.1 A forecast overspend of £28k is reported against the Shared 
Business & Technology Services.  This is mostly due to not being 
able to achieve previously agreed Digital East Herts savings target.

3   CORPORATE BUDGETS

3.1 Corporate budgets are costs and income received by the Council 
that are not service specific, these include income from the 
Council’s investments, pension deficit contributions and New 
Homes Bonus grants to Town and Parish Councils.

3.2 Table 3 below shows the forecast outturn position against the 
corporate budgets.

Table 3: Corporate budgets 2018/19 forecast outturn

  

Original 
Budget 
2018/19

Forecast 
outturn

Variance

  £'000 £'000 £'000
     

NHB Grants to Town & Parish 
Council  

661 661 -

NHB Priority Spend  661 661 -

Interest Payments  662 662 -

Interest & Investment Income  (1,090) (1,090) -

RCCO  26 26 -

Pension Fund Deficit 
contribution  

696 696 -

Corporate Budget Total  1,616 1,616

Page 55



4 RESERVES

4.1 The Council holds earmarked reserves to fund unpredictable 
financial pressures and to smooth the effect of known spending 
over time. Graph 1 and 2 below reflect the forecast outturn 
position as at 30th June 2018.

Graph 1: 2018/19 forecast contributions from reserves

0 100 200 300

Transformation reserve

Local Plan reserve

New Homes Bonus - Priority Spend Reserve

MTFP transition funding reserve

General Reserve

Commercial Property Fund

2018/19 forecast outturn £'000 2018/19 Budget £'000

2018/19 contributions from reserves

4.2 As at 30th June 2018 it is forecast that there will be a total 
contribution from reserves of £869k in 2018/19 this is in line with 
the approved 2018/19 budget. There are no significant variances 
at this time.

Page 56



Graph 2: 2018/19 forecast contributions to reserves

0 100 200 300 400 500 600 700

Housing condition Survey

Provision for future whole council elections

New Homes Bonus Priority Spend

Traffic Reg Order consolidation 

2018/19 forecast outturn £'000 2018/19 Budget £'000

2018/19 contributions to reserves

4.3 The forecast outturn total contribution to reserves as at 30th June 
2018 is in line with the budget set at Full Council in March 2018. 
The major contribution to reserves is from New Homes Bonus 
grant which will be used to fund future projects.

5 FUNDING

5.1 These income budgets are general and non-service specific 
income sources. The table below shows the value and source of 
these funding streams as at 30th June 2018.

Table 4: 2018/19 funding

Original 
Budget 
2018/19

Forecast 
Funding  
2018/19

Variance

Council Tax  (9,779) (9,779) -

NDR & S31 Grant  (2,617) (2,617) -

(Surplus)/Deficit on 
collection fund

 (63) (63) -

New Homes Bonus  (2,645) (2,645) -

Total Funding  (15,104) (15,104) -

Page 57



6    CAPITAL PROGRAMME

6.1 The revised capital budget for 2018/19 is £4.689m.  This includes 
the project carry forwards from 2017/18.  ERP C provides a 
detailed analysis of the projects and their budgets.

7 PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS

Performance against targets

7.1 Please refer to performance indicator summary analysis in 
Essential Reference Paper D for full performance indicator 
analysis.  Our latest results can be found at 
https://eastherts.covalentcpm.com/login and members have been 
issued with a password that sits in Members Information Bulletin 
(MIB) packs.

7.2 Q1 results show 33 performance indicators reported monthly or 
quarterly, that are divided into the three corporate priorities and 
supporting priorities (Corporate Health).  

7.3 The performance of these indicators are discussed below:-

7.4 Corporate Priority 1: People ( 4 Performance Indicators)
 

There are 4 Performance indicators within this priority.  3 of these 
indicators have targets set against them with 2 meeting their 
targets but the other missing set target:-

 QC HH 140 – Number of over 50s participating in 'Forever 
Active' programme.

This indictor operates across calendar rather than financial years 
to reflect Sport England’s timetable. There have been 316 new 
participants in January to June 2018, against a target of 500.  As 
this is the final year of Sport England funding perhaps some 
slowdown in uptake is to be expected although officers are now 

Page 58

https://eastherts.covalentcpm.com/login


working closely with Active In, a sports development organisation 
brought in by Active East Herts, to ensure sustainability of many 
of the Forever Active programme and are confident of achieving 
the 854 new participants figure by year end.  

7.5 The remaining trend only indicator (QC HH 151) is showing a 
positive movement on the previous quarter.

7.6 Corporate priority 2: Place (11 Performance Indicators)

There are 8 performance indicators within this priority that have a 
target set with the remaining 3 being trend only indicators.   
Within the target set indicators, three failed to meet target;- 

 QC OP 2.2 – Waste: missed collections per 100,000 collections 
of household

As part of the new shared waste contract there have been IT 
system changes in the way the missed bin collection data is 
gathered by the shared Waste service and the new contractor i.e. 
missed bins reported against actual missed bins by the 
contractor. The East Herts aspect of the contract is operating well 
with only minor increases in missed bins collections. A true 
reflection of this figure will be obtained for Aug/Q2 figures as 
discussions have now taken place with the contractor to ensure a 
consistent approach to data collection.

 QC OP 2.4  - Fly-tips: removal

Fly tipping removal times was slightly up on Q1.   This is due to a 
change in regime for data collection from the old contract to the 
new contract. Now that the 3 month settling in period is over and 
clarity has been provided over agreed methods of data collection, 
there is an expectation this figure to reduce in Q2.

 QC HH 155 - Number of affordable homes delivered (gross)

Page 59



The number of affordable homes narrowly missed the target of 
32 during Q1 by 1.  This will be closely monitored but the number 
achieved (31) is more than this point last year (19) and the target 
for 18/19 has increased so overall it is a positive movement

7.7 Within these trend only indicators, one is in a worse position than 
the previous quarter (QC 149c) while the other two are showing a 
positive trend movement.

7.8 Corporate priority 3: Business (1 Performance Indicator)

There is one performance indicator within this priority, MC HH 
184- % of food premises in the area which are broadly 
compliant with food hygiene law.  The 85% or above target has 
been met for all three months of Q1  

    
7.9 Corporate priority: Corporate Health (17 Performance 

Indicators)

There are 17 performance indicators within this priority, with 12 
having a target set and the remaining five being trend only 
indicators.  Within those with set targets, four indicators 
marginally missed their target by1% or less.  Details of two other 
indicators that missed target are shown below;

 MC HR 12B - Number of long-term sickness absence days per 
FTE staff in post

There is a monthly target of 0.17 days or less; this was achieved in 
April (0.10) and been missed for the months of May (0.25) and 
June (0.25).  HR Officers are working closely with managers to 
appropriately support our staff who are long term absent, to 
return to work.  

 MC CSP 5.13C - Customer Satisfaction (GovMetric) - Website.

The improved target set in October 2017 of 50% continues to be 
an aspirational target and many of the previous issues 

Page 60



surrounding website scores are still true, such as disagreements 
with a decision or policy rather than a score of the accessibility 
and quality of the service delivery over our website. 

Where we can, we continue to improve and develop our website 
and our latest result of July show an improvement close to target, 
with improvements such as the addition on a bulky waste form 
which allows customers to book bulky waste appointments online.

7.10 The remaining five trend only indicators relate to contact into the 
Council across our four main channels, E-Mail, E-Forms, Face to 
Face and Phone.  This is a new trend indicator for 2018/19 so 
there is no comparison data.  After acquiring the data, email 
contact in particular was considered to be too high and 
unrepresentative of true contact with much of this email traffic 
being spam email (not captured by in-house spam filters), 
marketing and sales emails. 

 As a result, the indicator will be developed to choose a specific 
area of the business that will be closely monitored to capture 
customer contact only where possible and this proxy we believe 
will provide a more useful and meaningful split in customer 
contact

8     RISK

8.1 Regarding the strategic risk register, there has been no change to 
risk descriptions in quarter one and no additions or deletions 
proposed. One score has changed. Due to the recent 
developments the residual impact rating of the Old River Lane risk 
has increased from 2 to 3 and the residual likelihood reduced 
from 3 to 2.

8.2 Members are reminded that all risks and the control introduced 
can be viewed at www.covalentcpm.com/eastherts

9 IMPLICATIONS/CONSULTATIONS

Information on any corporate issues and consultation associated 

Page 61

http://www.covalentcpm.com/eastherts


with this report can be found within Essential Reference Paper 
A.

Contact Member:

Councillor Geoff Williamson – Executive Member for Finance 
and Support Services 
geoffrey.williamson@eastherts.gov.uk

Contact officers:
Isabel Brittain – Head of Strategic Finance and Property
Ext: 2050
isabel.brittain@eastherts.gov.uk 

Ben Wood – Head of Communications, Strategy and Policy
Ext: 1699
benjamin.wood@eastherts.gov.uk

Report authors:

For financial budget monitoring:
Nasir Miah – Finance Business Advisor
Ext: 2054 
nasir.miah@eastherts.gov.uk

For performance monitoring:
Noel Wallis – Insight & Improvement Analyst
Ext: 2146
noel.wallis@eastherts.gov.uk

          For risk monitoring:
Graham Mully – Insurance and Risk Business Advisor
Ext: 2166
Graham.Mully@eastherts.gov.uk

Page 62

mailto:geoffrey.williamson@eastherts.gov.uk
mailto:isabel.brittain@eastherts.gov.uk
mailto:nasir.miah@eastherts.gov.uk
mailto:noel.wallis@eastherts.gov.uk
mailto:Graham.Mully@eastherts.gov.uk


 
  

ESSENTIAL REFERENCE PAPER ‘A’ 

 

IMPLICATIONS/CONSULTATIONS 

 

Contribution to 

the Council’s 

Corporate 

Priorities/ 

Objectives 

(delete as 

appropriate): 

Priority 1 – Improve the health and wellbeing of our 

communities  

 

Priority 2 – Enhance the quality of people’s lives  

 

Priority 3 – Enable a flourishing local economy  

 

Consultation:  

Financial and non-financial discussions have taken 

place with the Leadership Team and Portfolio Holder 

for Finance and Support Services.  
 

Legal: There are no legal implications 

  

Financial: Financial and non-financial discussions have taken place 

with the Leadership Team and Portfolio Holder for 

Finance and Support Services 

Human 

Resource: 

There are no Human Resources implications. 

 

Risk 

Management: 

By not having effective performance management and 

reporting the Council is at risk of not being clear whether 

its priorities and objectives are being met and service 

delivery issues being resolved efficiently and effectively. 

Effective performance management supports 

transparency and improves local accountability. 

 

Health and 

wellbeing – 

issues and 

impacts: 

 

There are no Health and Wellbeing issues raised as part 

of this report. 

Equality Impact 

Assessment 

required: 

No. 

Page 63



This page is intentionally left blank



ESSENTIAL REFERENCE PAPER B

2018/19 Revenue Forecast - Quarter ending June 2018

Original 

Budget 

2018/19

Budget to 

date

Actual to 

date

Variance to 

date

Forecast 

outturn
Variance

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Chief Executive & Directors              377              366              328              (38)              359              (18) 

Communications, Strategy & Policy           1,014              808              811                  3           1,002              (12) 

HR & Organisational Development              491              377              383                  6              485                (6) 

Strategic Finance & Property           1,796              997           1,523              526           1,790                (6) 

Housing & Health           2,222           1,971           1,008            (963)           2,174              (48) 

Democratic and Legal           1,236              904              847              (57)           1,238                  2 

Planning & Building Control              594              891              761            (130)              718              124 

Operations           3,750           3,271           1,855         (1,416)           3,715              (35) 

Shared Revenues & Benefits Service           1,718           2,421           1,331         (1,090)           1,719                  1 

Revenues & benefits retained costs            (379)                89                  7              (82)            (425)              (46) 

Housing Benefit Susbidy            (550)         26,066         25,479            (587)            (550)                   - 

Shared Business & Technology 

Services
          1,627              955           1,223              268           1,655                28 

Total Net Cost of Services         13,896         39,116         35,556         (3,560)         13,880              (16) 

 NHB Grants to Town & Parish 

Councils
             661                   -                   -                   -              661                   - 

New Homes Bonus Priority Spend              661                   -                   -                   -              661                   - 

Contingency Budget                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   - 

Interest Payments              662                   -                   -                   -              662                   - 

Interest & Investment income         (1,090)                   -                   -                   -         (1,090)                   - 

RCCO                26                   -                   -                   -                26                   - 

Pension Fund Deficit contribution              696                   -                   -                   -              696                   - 

Corporate Budgets Total:           1,616                   -                   -                   -           1,616                   - 

Contributions to Earmarked reserves                42                   -                   -                42                   - 

Contributions from Earmarked 

reserves
           (450)                   -                   -            (450)                   - 

Net Use of Reserves:            (408)                   -                   -                   -            (408)                   - 

        15,104         39,116         35,556         (3,560)         15,088              (16) 

RSG                   -                   -                   -                   - 

NDR         (2,617)                   -                   -         (2,617)                   - 

Section 31                   -                   -                   -                   -                   - 

(Surplus)/Deficit on Collection fuind              (63)                   -                   -              (63)                   - 

Other General Grants                   -                   -                   -                   - 

New Homes Bonus         (2,645)                   -                   -         (2,645)                   - 

        (5,325)                   -                   -                   -         (5,325)                   - 

          9,779         39,116         35,556         (3,560)           9,763              (16) Total:

N
e

t 
C

o
s

t 
o

f 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 B

u
d

g
e

ts
U

s
e

 o
f 

R
e

s
e

rv
e

s

Net Cost of Services Total:

F
u

n
d

in
g

Non Departmental Budgets Total:

Page 65



This page is intentionally left blank



ESSENTIAL REFERENCE PAPER C

CAPITAL BUDGET 2018/19

2018/19 Approved Schemes plus slippage from 

2017/18

2018/19 

Revised Budget

Head of Strategic Finance & Property £

Glazing & equalities access works to Swimming Pools 40,000

Leventhorpe Swimming Pool - Renew main supply fan to 

the main pool area

25,000

Joint Provision Pools (Ward Freman, Leventhorpe & 

Fanshawe) - Replacement Air Conditioning to Offices

15,000

Grange Paddocks Pool - to treat laminated timber beams 

to ensure they are properly protected from high humidity & 

chemicals used in the treatment of the pool water

25,000

Investment of operational assets 250,000

Hertford Theatre - Replace Auditorium Roof 190,000

Riverbank Retaining Wall - St Andrews Street Car Park, 

Hertford.

55,000

Bell Street Car Park (Zone C) Sawbridgeworth - 

resurfacing & drainage

30,000

Charringtons House 2nd Floor Suite Refurbishment 0

Maximise return from Council assets by generating rental 

income & business rates income from Charringtons House 

for the Council once the suite is refurbished

138,000

Accommodation update Wallfields 11,640

Total Strategic Finance & Property 779,640

Head of Shared Business & Technology Services

Page 67



Rolling programme to be utilised on ICT projects subject 

to ITSG review

773,940

New Finance System Capital Salaries 14,750

New HR & Payroll System 35,300

New Finance System 33,540

Telephony Enhancements 28,300

Total Shared Business & Technology Services 885,830

Head of Operations

Hartham & Beyond - Creation of walking routes emanating 

from Hertford Town centre providing health and well-being 

opportunities.  

11,000

Bell Street, Sawbridgeworth - Modernise the public 

convenience facilities, in preparation for transferring the 

operation to Sawbridgeworth Town Council under an 

agency agreement

67,400

Southern Country Park - expansion of play equipment for 

younger children to meet requests and in support of 

Green Flag award

30,000

Hillside Crescent, Stanstead Abbotts  play area - 

refurbishment of equipment in response to previous play 

audit

20,000

Play Equipment - Rowleys Road, Hertford 11,000

Woodland restoration at Presdales Recreation Ground, 

Ware - Installation of a circular walk, car park 

improvements & woodland restoration.

31,530

Fire Suppression Unit at Buntingford Depot 350,000

Total Head of Operations 520,930

Head of Housing & Health

Page 68



River & Watercourse Structures - Improve, maintain & 

renew structures along rivers and watercourses to 

alleviate possible flooding throughout the district.

47,500

Land Management Asset Register & Associated Works 50,000

Disabled Facilities - Discretionary 60,000

Decent Home Grants 120,000

Future Housing Schemes 1,020,740

Ridgeway Scheme, Hertford (Network Homes) 250,000

Colebrook Court (Network Housing) 33,000

To take forward the Council’s priorities for people, place 

and prosperity, especially in rural areas of East 

Hertfordshire. Grants will be awarded for projects and 

items of equipment that provide new community facilities, 

or significantly improve valued existing ones, improve 

opportunities and bring positive change in your local area 

for the wider community.  

80,000

Energy Efficiency & Carbon Reduction Measures - 

Installation of solar panels at Wallfields, Hertford

45,000

Castle Weir Micro Hydro Scheme - To provide a small 

Hydro-electricity turbine in the river Lee at Hertford Weir.  

This is an invest to save project and will generate 

electricity providing power for Hertford Theatre and for 

sale to the Grid.  The scheme is subject to a rigorous 

approval process by the Environment Agency for flood risk 

and protection of biodiversity.

200,980

Energy Grants 65,400

Total Housing & Health 1,972,620

Head of Planning

Historic Building Grants - Enable grants to be offered to 

the owners of historic buildings to encourage their 

maintenance and upkeep.

55,000

Page 69



Market Improvement Scheme 42,410

Improvements to The Wash, Maidenhead Street & Bull 

Plain, Hertford

433,000

Total Planning 530,410

Head of Communications, Strategy & Policy

Environmental Enhancements to East Herts town centres 0

Total Communications, Strategy & Policy 0

TOTAL 4,689,430

Page 70



PI code and Name Status
Latest 

Value

Current 

Target

Movement 

since last 

update

Performance Data Trend Chart Notes & History Latest Note

(E) QC HH 140 

Number of over 50s 

participating in 

'Forever Active' 

programme 

(Cumulative figure) 

(Calendar year 

results)

123 500
Cumulative 

Figure

Provisional results indicate 193 new people have 

signed up during this quarter with 123 in the 

second quarter, totalling 316 for the first two 

quarters.  This has fallen short of the 500 target 

hoped by the end of the second quarter

QC HH 151 Number 

of homeless 

households living in 

temporary 

accommodation at 

the end of the 

quarter.

trend only 18 none set

At the end of July 2018 the council had 18 

households in temporary accommodation . The 

council owned temporary accommodation hostel 

had 10 out of 12 flats occupied. Three households 

were in B&B as they were unsuitable for the 

hostel. Four households were in temporary 

supported accommodation and one was in longer 

term private leased self contained 

accommodation.

Service: Health & Housing

Essential Reference Paper D - Performance Analysis (E is externally sourced)

Directorate Improve the health & wellbeing of our communities

Page 71



PI code and Name Status
Latest 

Value

Current 

Target

Movement 

since last 

update

Performance Data Trend Chart Notes & History Latest Note

Essential Reference Paper D - Performance Analysis (E is externally sourced)

QC HH 150 Number 

of prevented 

homeless 

applications

55 50
Cumulative 

Figure

In the first quarter of 2018/19 the council 

prevented a total of 55 households becoming 

homeless. This was by a variety of housing 

options: by the provision of housing advice to 

relieve homelessness or securing alternative 

accommodation through an offer of 

accommodation following an application to the 

council's housing register, or following a referral 

to supported accommodation or actively assisting 

applicants secure accommodation through the 

private sector with the council's rent deposit offer.

MC RB 181 Time 

taken to process 

Housing Benefit 

new claims and 

change events.

9.52 10 days Current Figures are well within targets

Service: Revs & Bens

Service: Health & Housing

Directorate Enhance the quality of people's lives

Page 72



PI code and Name Status
Latest 

Value

Current 

Target

Movement 

since last 

update

Performance Data Trend Chart Notes & History Latest Note

Essential Reference Paper D - Performance Analysis (E is externally sourced)

QC HH 149C % of 

Affordable homes 

delivered on section 

106 developments 

in Towns against an 

annual 40% 

cumulative Planning 

Policy target

trend only 21% N/A

New affordable homes from one Section 106 

schemes were handed over in quarter 1. The 

completed scheme had a total of 48 new homes 

of which 10 were affordable which is 21% of the 

total new homes and was therefore below the 

policy target of 40%. The scheme was agreed at 

below 40% as part of the planning permission 

process and a viability assessment was carried 

out and agreed.

QC HH 149D  % of 

Affordable homes 

delivered on section 

106 developments 

in Villages

trend only 29% none set

Two new affordable homes from one Section 106 

schemes were handed over in quarter 1 in a 

village. The completed scheme had a total of 7 

new homes of which 2 were affordable which is 

29% of the total new homes and was therefore 

above the policy target of 25%.

Page 73



PI code and Name Status
Latest 

Value

Current 

Target

Movement 

since last 

update

Performance Data Trend Chart Notes & History Latest Note

Essential Reference Paper D - Performance Analysis (E is externally sourced)

QC HH 155 Number 

of affordable homes 

delivered (gross)

31 32
Cumulative 

Figure

A total of 28 affordable rented homes and 3 

shared ownership homes were completed in the 

first quarter of 2018/19. The primary source of 

new affordable homes for 2018/19 is through 

Section 106 agreements between the council, 

developers and housing associations.

MC PB 157A % 

Processing of 

planning 

applications dealt 

with in timely 

manner - Major 

applications (Majors- 

under 13 weeks).

75.00% 60.00%
There were 3 out of 4 applications dealt with 

within a timely manner.  

Service: Planning & Building Control

Page 74



PI code and Name Status
Latest 

Value

Current 

Target

Movement 

since last 

update

Performance Data Trend Chart Notes & History Latest Note

Essential Reference Paper D - Performance Analysis (E is externally sourced)

MC PB 157B % 

Processing of 

planning 

applications dealt 

with in timely 

manner- Minor 

applications (Others 

- under 8 weeks).

80.00% 80.00%
Figures improved on previous months with 32 out 

of 33 applications dealt with 

MC PB 157C % 

Processing of 

planning 

applications dealt 

with in timely 

manner- Other 

applications (Others 

- under 8 weeks).

96.00% 90.00% 136 out of 142

MC PB 205 % of site 

visits undertaken in 

relation to urgent 

cases within 2 

workings days of 

‘start date’.

100% 100% N/A Only 1 urgent case in this period.

Page 75



PI code and Name Status
Latest 

Value

Current 

Target

Movement 

since last 

update

Performance Data Trend Chart Notes & History Latest Note

Essential Reference Paper D - Performance Analysis (E is externally sourced)

(E) MC OP 191 

Residual household 

waste per 

household.

trend only 112kg none set
Cumulative 

Figure

Figures for the first 3 months of the year have 

improved year on year. Thus is due in part to an 

updated number of households being used in the 

calculation of the final figure. The number of 

households used prior to this had been sourced 

from a 2014 value and had been used 

consistently for a number of years. A process has 

now been set up where the waste figures will be 

based on the number of households according to 

the VOA at the end of each month, thus will be a 

much better assessment

(E)MC OP 192 % of 

household waste 

sent for reuse, 

recycling and 

composting.

53.74% 50%

The initial estimate of 53.47% shows an increase 

in recycling from the previous year and an 

improvement on previous months performance.

Service: Operations

Page 76



PI code and Name Status
Latest 

Value

Current 

Target

Movement 

since last 

update

Performance Data Trend Chart Notes & History Latest Note

Essential Reference Paper D - Performance Analysis (E is externally sourced)

MC OP 2.2 -  Waste: 

missed collections 

per 100,000 

collections of 

household.

89 30

As part of the new shared waste contract there 

have been IT system changes in the way the 

missed bin collection data is gathered by the 

shared Waste service and the new contractor i.e. 

missed bins reported against actual missed bins 

by the contractor. The East Herts aspect of the 

contract is operating well with only minor 

increases in missed bins collections. A true 

reflection of this figure will be obtained for 

Aug/Q2 figures as discussions have now taken 

place with the contractor to ensure a consistent 

approach to data collection.

QC OP 2.4 Fly-tips: 

Time taken for 

removal (Latest 

figure Q4 17/18).

2.93 days 2.00 days

Fly tipping removal times was slightly up on Q1.   

This is due to a change in regime for data 

collection from the old contract to the new 

contract. Now that the 3 month settling in period 

is over and clarity has been provided over agreed 

methods of data collection, there is an 

expectation this figure to reduce in Q2. 

Service: Health & Housing

Directorate Enable a flourishing local economy

Page 77



PI code and Name Status
Latest 

Value

Current 

Target

Movement 

since last 

update

Performance Data Trend Chart Notes & History Latest Note

Essential Reference Paper D - Performance Analysis (E is externally sourced)

QC HH 184 % of 

food premises in 

the area which are 

broadly compliant 

with food hygiene 

law (Latest figure 

Q4 17/18).

95.00% 85.00%

2018/2019 Qtr 1 - Target exceeded. 95% of 

registered food businesses in East Herts are 

broadly compliant with food law; this represents 

977 businesses.

MC RB 10.2 Council 

tax collection, % of 

current year liability 

collected.

29.90% 30.00%
Cumulative 

Figure

Council Tax collection sits marginally below 30% 

target when using 2 decimal places.  This value is 

the same as this time last June so value provided 

are in keeping with annual trends

Service: Revs & Bens

Directorate Supporting All Priorities

Page 78



PI code and Name Status
Latest 

Value

Current 

Target

Movement 

since last 

update

Performance Data Trend Chart Notes & History Latest Note

Essential Reference Paper D - Performance Analysis (E is externally sourced)

MC RB 10.4 NNDR 

(Business rates) 

collection, % of 

current year liability 

collected.

31.80% 30.00%
Cumulative 

Figure

Business rate collection is over set target and is in 

a better position than this time last year (30.9% 

June 2017)

MC HR 12A Number 

of short-term 

sickness absence 

days per FTE staff in 

post

0.25 days 0.38 days
S/T absence for the year so far = 0.83 (end of year 

target = 4.5)

MC HR 12B Number 

of long-term 

sickness absence 

days per FTE staff in 

post

0.25 days 0.17 days

L/T absence for the year so far = 0.60 (end of year 

target = 2)

HR Officers are working closely with managers to 

appropriately support our staff who are long term 

absent, to return to work

Service: Human Resources

Page 79



PI code and Name Status
Latest 

Value

Current 

Target

Movement 

since last 

update

Performance Data Trend Chart Notes & History Latest Note

Essential Reference Paper D - Performance Analysis (E is externally sourced)

MC HR 12C Total 

number of sickness 

absence days per 

FTE staff in post

0.5 days 0.54 days
Total sickness for the year so far = 1.44 (end of 

year target = 6.5)

MC DL 5.15 % of FOI 

cases closed in 

month that were 

closed within 20 

working days or less

96.83% 90.00%
During August a total of 66 FOI cases were closed. 

Of those 66 cases 3 breached the time limits

Service: Democratic & Legal Services

Service: Communications, Strategy & Policy

Page 80



PI code and Name Status
Latest 

Value

Current 

Target

Movement 

since last 

update

Performance Data Trend Chart Notes & History Latest Note

Essential Reference Paper D - Performance Analysis (E is externally sourced)

(E)MC CSP 5.13A % 

Good Satisfaction 

(GovMetric) - Face 

to Face.

79% 80%

Scores during June were lower than previous 

months. The target was marginally missed by 1% 

but scores will be monitored closely. 147 or 79% 

were good scores with a further 21 or 11% gave 

an average score. Only 10% gave poor scores.

(E)MC CSP 5.13B % 

Good Satisfaction 

(GovMetric) - 

Telephone.

N/A N/A 90% There were no scores provided in June

Page 81



PI code and Name Status
Latest 

Value

Current 

Target

Movement 

since last 

update

Performance Data Trend Chart Notes & History Latest Note

Essential Reference Paper D - Performance Analysis (E is externally sourced)

(E)MC CSP 5.13C % 

Good Satisfaction 

(GovMetric) - 

Website.

44% 35%

Scores for the website continue to miss improved 

target. Specific negative comments are always 

taken on board and there are various 

improvement ideas being investigated and 

implemented across the website. 37 or 44% gave 

good scores with 10 or 12% giving average scores.  

One specific comment that is a common theme 

has been the lack of ability to book a bulky waste 

appointment.  The team have worked to build 

such a form which should greatly improve 

customer experiences

QC CSP 5.1 % of 

complaints resolved 

in 14 days (10 

working days) or 

less.

69.57% 70.00%

There were 23 complaints closed in Q1 of which, 

16 were closed within 14 days. This meant the 

target was missed by less than 0.5%

Page 82



PI code and Name Status
Latest 

Value

Current 

Target

Movement 

since last 

update

Performance Data Trend Chart Notes & History Latest Note

Essential Reference Paper D - Performance Analysis (E is externally sourced)

QC CSP 5.2A % of 

complaints about 

the Council and its 

services that are 

upheld: 1st stage

21.42% 30.00%

Of 14 stage 1 complaints, 3 were upheld at stage 

1. Of these 3, 2 were only partially upheld 

meaning we only accepted partial fault for 

elements of the complaint but could not take full 

responsibility

QC CSP 5.2B % of 

complaints about 

the Council and its 

services that are 

upheld: 2nd stage - 

appeal

11.11% 25.00%

There were 9 complaints that were raised at stage 

2. Of those 9, only one was partially upheld. There 

was an upsurge in complaints at stage 2 during 

this quarter but the outcomes of these complaints 

highlights that we believe we are doing things 

correctly.

1a Volume & 

Proportion of 

Contacts by Email

New PI 
75.6% - 

276,344
Trend only New PI 

1b Volume & 

Proportion of 

Contacts by F2F

New PI 
1.38% - 

5,030
Trend only New PI 

The figures within the channels and their proportions reflect total contact across the Council by each 

channel and there are several caveats to consider.  Whereas F2F and e-forms interactions are 

normally pre filtered in the information that is provided on the form or on the website, calls and 

emails don’t necessarily have this level of filtering.  On top of this, a majority of email traffic would 

contain sales emails, marketing and subscriptions. 

 As a result, there is a notion that these proportions are not an accurate assessment of true 

customer contact.  Going forward, a more tailored approach will be considered and developed, 

looking at one department within the Council (Customer Services) and looking at contact into this 

channel alone.

Service: Digital East Herts

Page 83



PI code and Name Status
Latest 

Value

Current 

Target

Movement 

since last 

update

Performance Data Trend Chart Notes & History Latest Note

Essential Reference Paper D - Performance Analysis (E is externally sourced)

1c Volume & 

Proportion of 

Contacts by Phone

New PI 
21.9% - 

97,085
Trend only New PI 

1d Volume & 

Proportion of 

Contacts by Web 

Forms

New PI 
1.16% - 

3,989
Trend only New PI 

PI Status

Trend Only

n/a

Value is the same as previous period

N/A -Cumulative so will always be above previous period

Value is lower than previous period & this is negative movement

The figures within the channels and their proportions reflect total contact across the Council by each 

channel and there are several caveats to consider.  Whereas F2F and e-forms interactions are 

normally pre filtered in the information that is provided on the form or on the website, calls and 

emails don’t necessarily have this level of filtering.  On top of this, a majority of email traffic would 

contain sales emails, marketing and subscriptions. 

 As a result, there is a notion that these proportions are not an accurate assessment of true 

customer contact.  Going forward, a more tailored approach will be considered and developed, 

looking at one department within the Council (Customer Services) and looking at contact into this 

channel alone.

Value is lower than previous period but this is positive movement

Value is higher than previous period but this is negative movement

Movement since last period

Value is higher than previous period & this is positive movement

Performance is 6% or more off target

Performance is 3% or more off target

Performance is on target or exceeding target

No target to set performance against

Latest data unavailable - last data shown

Page 84



EAST HERTS COUNCIL

PERFORMANCE, AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE – 4 SEPTEMBER 2018                                    

REPORT BY EXECUTIVE MEMBER FOR FINANCE AND SUPPORT 
SERVICES

ANNUAL TREASURY MANAGEMENT REVIEW 2017-18

WARD(S) AFFECTED:  NONE

Purpose/Summary of Report

The report reviews the Council’s treasury management activities for 
2016/17, including the prudential indicators and identifies the 
associated impact on the 2017/18 treasury management strategy.

RECOMMENDATION(S) FOR FOR PERFORMANCE, AUDIT AND 
GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE: to recommend to the Executive that:  

(A) The 2017/18 Treasury Management Activity and 
Prudential Indicators be approved.

1.0 Background 

1.1 Treasury management is defined as: ‘The management of the 
Council’s investments and cash flows, its banking 
arrangements, money market and capital transactions; the 
effective control of the risks associated with these activities; and 
the pursuit of optimum returns consistent with the Council’s 
risk management policy for treasury management.’

1.2 This activity is supported by the council’s appointed 

Page 85

Agenda Item 7



independent advisors – Link Asset Services.

1.3 The Council is required by regulations under the Local 
Government Act 2003 to produce an annual treasury 
management review of activities and the actual prudential and 
treasury indicators for 2017/18.

1.4 This report meets the requirements of both the CIPFA Code of 
Practice on Treasury Management (the Code) and the CIPFA 
Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities (the 
Prudential Code).

1.5 The Council is required by the CIPFA Prudential Code to 
approve an annual review following the end of the year 
describing the activity compared to the strategy.

2.0 Report

2.1 Please refer to the Annual Treasury Management Review, 
Essential Reference Paper ‘B’: Annual Treasury Management 
Review 2017-18 and Prudential Indicators 2017-18.

3.0 Implications/Consultations

3.1 Information on any corporate issues and consultation 
associated with this report can be found within Essential 
Reference Paper ‘A’.  

Background Papers
CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management (2017)
CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities (2017)

Contact Member: Councillor Geoffrey Williamson, Executive 
Member for Finance and Support Services.
geoffrey.williamson@eastherts.gov.uk 

Contact Officer: Isabel Brittain, Head of Strategic Finance and 

Page 86

mailto:geoffrey.williamson@eastherts.gov.uk


Property, 
Contact Tel No: 01279 502050.
isabel.brittain@eastherts.gov.uk

Report Author: Nicola Munro, Finance Business Partner, 
Contact Tel No: 01279 502044.  
nicola.munro@eastherts.gov.uk

Page 87

mailto:isabel.brittain@eastherts.gov.uk
mailto:nicola.munro@eastherts.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



ESSENTIAL REFERENCE PAPER ‘A’

IMPLICATIONS/CONSULTATIONS

Contribution to 
the Council’s 
Corporate 
Priorities/ 
Objectives:

Priority 1 – Improve the health and wellbeing of our 
communities 

Priority 2 – Enhance the quality of people’s lives 

Priority 3 – Enable a flourishing local economy 

Consultation: Not Applicable 
Legal: The CIPFA (Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 

Accountancy) Code of Practice for Treasury 
Management recommends that members be updated 
on treasury management activities regularly (Treasury 
Management Strategy Statement, annual and midyear 
reports). This report therefore ensures this Council is 
implementing best practice in accordance with the 
Code.

The report fulfils the following legislative 
requirements:

• Reporting of prudential Indicators in line with 
the requirements of the CIPFA Code of Practice.

• Reporting to those charged with governance a 
mid-year treasury management report.  

Financial: Within the body of the report.
Human 
Resource:

Not Applicable 

Risk 
Management:

Within the body of the report.

Health and 
wellbeing – 
issues and 

Not Applicable

Page 89



impacts:

Equality Impact 
Assessment 
required:

No

Page 90



Essential Reference Paper B

East Herts District Council

Annual Treasury Management 
Review 

2017/18

Page 91



 

2

ABBREVIATIONS USED IN THIS REPORT

ALMO: an Arm’s Length Management Organisation is a not-for-
profit company that provides housing services on behalf of a local 
authority. Usually an ALMO is set up by the authority to manage 
and improve all or part of its housing stock.

LAS: Link Asset Services, Treasury solutions – the council’s 
treasury management advisers.

CE: Capital Economics - is the economics consultancy that 
provides Link Asset Services, Treasury solutions, with independent 
economic forecasts, briefings and research.

CFR: capital financing requirement - the council’s annual 
underlying borrowing need to finance capital expenditure and a 
measure of the council’s total outstanding indebtedness.

CIPFA: Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy – 
the professional accounting body that oversees and sets 
standards in local authority finance and treasury management.

CPI: consumer price inflation – the official measure of inflation 
adopted as a common standard by countries in the EU.  It is a 
measure that examines the weighted average of prices of a 
basket of consumer goods and services, such as transportation, 
food and medical care. It is calculated by taking price changes for 
each item in the predetermined basket of goods and averaging 
them.

ECB: European Central Bank - the central bank for the Eurozone

EU: European Union

EZ: Eurozone -those countries in the EU which use the euro as 
their currency

Page 92



 

3

Fed: The Federal Reserve, often referred to simply as "the Fed," is 
the central bank of the United States. It was created by the 
Congress to provide the nation with a stable monetary and 
financial system.

FOMC: the Federal Open Market Committee – this is the branch of 
the Federal Reserve Board which determines monetary policy in 
the USA by setting interest rates and determining quantitative 
easing policy.  It is composed of 12 members--the seven members 
of the Board of Governors and five of the 12 Reserve Bank 
presidents.

GDP: gross domestic product – a measure of the growth and total 
size of the economy.

G7: The group of seven countries that form an informal bloc of 
industrialised democracies--the United States, Canada, France, 
Germany, Italy, Japan, and the United Kingdom--that meets 
annually to discuss issues such as global economic governance, 
international security, and energy policy.

Gilts: Gilts are bonds issued by the UK Government to borrow 
money on the financial markets. Interest paid by the Government 
on gilts is called a yield and is at a rate that is fixed for the 
duration until maturity of the gilt, (unless a gilt is index linked to 
inflation); yields therefore change inversely to the price of gilts i.e. 
a rise in the price of a gilt will mean that its yield will fall.

HRA: Housing revenue account. 

IMF: International Monetary Fund - the lender of last resort for 
national governments which get into financial difficulties.

LIBID: The London Interbank Bid Rate is a bid rate; the rate bid by 
banks on deposits i.e., the rate at which a bank is willing to borrow 
from other banks.  It is the "other end" of the LIBOR (an offered, 
hence "ask" rate, the rate at which a bank will lend).

Page 93



 

4

MHCLG: The Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local 
Government - the Government department that directs local 
authorities in England. 

MPC: The Monetary Policy Committee is a committee of the Bank 
of England, which meets for one and a half days, eight times a 
year, to determine monetary policy by setting the official interest 
rate in the United Kingdom, (the Bank of England Base Rate, 
commonly called Bank Rate), and by making decisions on 
quantitative easing.

MRP: minimum revenue provision -a statutory annual minimum 
revenue charge to reduce the total outstanding CFR, (the total 
indebtedness of a local authority).

PFI: Private Finance Initiative – capital expenditure financed by the 
private sector i.e. not by direct borrowing by a local authority.

PWLB: Public Works Loan Board – this is the part of H.M. Treasury 
which provides loans to local authorities to finance capital 
expenditure.

QE: Quantitative easing – is an unconventional form of monetary 
policy where a central bank creates new money electronically to 
buy financial assets, like government bonds, (but may also include 
corporate bonds). This process aims to stimulate economic 
growth through increased private sector spending in the economy 
and also aims to return inflation to target.   These purchases 
increase the supply of liquidity to the economy; this policy is 
employed when lowering interest rates has failed to stimulate 
economic growth to an acceptable level and to lift inflation to 
target. Once QE has achieved its objectives of stimulating growth 
and inflation, QE will be reversed by selling the bonds the central 
bank had previously purchased, or by not replacing debt that it 
held which matures.  The aim of this reversal is to ensure that 
inflation does not exceed its target once the economy recovers 
from a sustained period of depressed growth and inflation.  
Economic growth, and increases in inflation, may threaten to 

Page 94



 

5

gather too much momentum if action is not taken to ‘cool’ the 
economy. 

RPI: The Retail Price Index is a measure of inflation that measures 
the change in the cost of a representative sample of retail goods 
and services. It was the UK standard for measurement of inflation 
until the UK changed to using the EU standard measure of 
inflation – CPI. The main difference between RPI and CPI is in the 
way that housing costs are treated. RPI is often higher than CPI for 
that reason.

TMSS: the annual treasury management strategy statement 
report that all local authorities are required to submit for approval 
by the full council before the start of each financial year.

VRP: a voluntary revenue provision to repay debt, in the annual 
budget, which is additional to the annual MRP charge, (see above 
definition).

Page 95



 

6

Annual Treasury Management Review 
2017/18

1. Introduction
This Council is required by regulations issued under the Local 
Government Act 2003 to produce an annual treasury 
management review of activities and the actual prudential and 
treasury indicators for 2017/18. This report meets the 
requirements of both the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury 
Management, (the Code), and the CIPFA Prudential Code for 
Capital Finance in Local Authorities, (the Prudential Code). 

During 2017/18 the minimum reporting requirements were 
that the full Council should receive the following reports:

 an annual treasury strategy in advance of the year (Council 
01/03/2017)

 a mid-year (minimum) treasury update report (Council 
13/12/2017)

 an annual review following the end of the year describing 
the activity compared to the strategy (this report) 

The regulatory environment places responsibility on members 
for the review and scrutiny of treasury management policy and 
activities. This report is, therefore, important in that respect, as 
it provides details of the outturn position for treasury activities 
and highlights compliance with the Council’s policies previously 
approved by members.  

This Council confirms that it has complied with the requirement 
under the Code to give prior scrutiny to all of the above 
treasury management reports by the Performance, Audit and 
Governance Scrutiny Committee before they were reported to 
the full Council.  

Page 96



 

7

2. The Economy and Interest Rates 

During the calendar year of 2017, there was a major shift in 
expectations in financial markets in terms of how soon Bank Rate 
would start on a rising trend.  After the UK economy surprised on 
the upside with strong growth in the second half of 2016, growth 
in 2017 was disappointingly weak in the first half of the year which 
meant that growth was the slowest for the first half of any year 
since 2012. The main reason for this was the sharp increase in 
inflation caused by the devaluation of sterling after the EU 
referendum, feeding increases into the cost of imports into the 
economy.  This caused a reduction in consumer disposable 
income and spending power as inflation exceeded average wage 
increases.  Consequently, the services sector of the economy, 
accounting for around 75% of GDP, saw weak growth as 
consumers responded by cutting back on their expenditure. 
However, growth did pick up modestly in the second half of 2017.  
Consequently, market expectations during the autumn, rose 
significantly that the MPC would be heading in the direction of 
imminently raising Bank Rate.  The minutes of the MPC meeting of 
14 September indicated that the MPC was likely to raise Bank Rate 
very soon.  The 2nd November MPC quarterly Inflation Report 
meeting duly delivered by raising Bank Rate from 0.25% to 0.50%. 
The 8th February MPC meeting minutes then revealed another 
sharp hardening in MPC warnings on a more imminent and faster 
pace of increases in Bank Rate than had previously been 
expected. Market expectations for increases in Bank Rate, 
therefore, shifted considerably during the second half of 2017-18 
and resulted in investment rates from 3 – 12 months increasing 
sharply during the spring quarter.

PWLB borrowing rates increased correspondingly to the above 
developments with the shorter term rates increasing more 
sharply than longer term rates.  In addition, UK gilts have moved 
in a relatively narrow band this year, (within 25 bps for much of 
the year), compared to US treasuries. During the second half of 
the year, there was a noticeable trend in treasury yields being on 
a rising trend with the Fed raising rates by 0.25% in June, 

Page 97



 

8

December and March, making six increases in all from the floor. 
The effect of these three increases was greater in shorter terms 
around 5 year, rather than longer term yields. 

The major UK landmark event of the year was the inconclusive 
result of the general election on 8th June.  However, this had 
relatively little impact on financial markets.  

(Commentary provided by Link Asset Services)

Page 98



 

9

3. Overall Treasury Position as at 31 March 2018 
At the beginning and the end of 2017/18 the Council‘s treasury, 
(excluding borrowing by finance leases), position was as follows:

31st 
March 
2017 

Principal

Rate / 
Return

Average 
Life 
Yrs.

31st 
March 
2018 

Principal

Rate / 
Return

Average 
Life
 Yrs.

Total debt £7.5m 8.83% 20.5 £7.5m 8.83% 19.5

CFR (£23.1m) (£23.1m)
Over / (under) 
borrowing £7.5m £7.5m

Total 
investments £61.8m 1.61% £65.9m 1.51%

Net debt (£54.3m) (£58.4m)

Page 99



 

10

4. The Strategy for 2017/18
The expectation for interest rates within the treasury 
management strategy for 2017/18 anticipated that Bank Rate 
would not start rising from 0.25% until quarter 2 2019 and then 
only increase once more before 31.3.20.  There would also be 
gradual rises in medium and longer term fixed borrowing rates 
during 2017/18 and the two subsequent financial years.  
Variable, or short-term rates, were expected to be the cheaper 
form of borrowing over the period.  Continued uncertainty in 
the aftermath of the 2008 financial crisis promoted a cautious 
approach, whereby investments would continue to be 
dominated by low counterparty risk considerations, resulting in 
relatively low returns compared to borrowing rates.

In this scenario, the treasury strategy was to postpone 
borrowing to avoid the cost of holding higher levels of 
investments and to reduce counterparty risk.  

During 2017/18, longer term PWLB rates were volatile but with 
little overall direction, whereas shorter term PWLB rates were 
on a rising trend during the second half of the year.

(Commentary provided by Link Asset Services)

5. The Borrowing Requirement and Debt 
The Council’s underlying need to borrow to finance capital 
expenditure is termed the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR).  

31st March 
2017

Actual

31st March 
2018

Budget 

31st March 
2018

Actual
CFR General Fund (£m) (23.1) (21.0) (23.1)

Page 100



 

11

6. Borrowing Rates in 2017/18
PWLB certainty maturity borrowing rates

As depicted in the graph and tables below and in Appendix 4, 
PWLB 25 and 50 year rates have been volatile during the year with 
little consistent trend.  However, shorter rates were on a rising 
trend during the second half of the year and reached peaks in 
February / March. 

During the year, the 50 year PWLB target (certainty) rate for new 
long term borrowing was 2.50% in quarters 1 and 3 and 2.60% in 
quarters 2 and 4. 

The graphs and tables for PWLB rates show, for a selection of 
maturity periods, the average borrowing rates, the high and low 
points in rates, spreads and individual rates at the start and the 
end of the financial year.

(Commentary and graph provided by Link Asset Services)

Page 101



 

12

7. Borrowing Outturn for 2017/18

Borrowing 

No borrowing was undertaken during the year.

Rescheduling 

No rescheduling was done during the year as the average 1% 
differential between PWLB new borrowing rates and premature 
repayment rates made rescheduling unviable.

Repayments

No repayments were made by the Council during the year.

Page 102



 

13

8. Investment Rates in 2017/18

Investments rates for 3 months and longer have been on a rising 
trend during the second half of the year in the expectation of 
Bank Rate increasing from its floor of 0.25%, and reached a peak 
at the end of March. Bank Rate was duly raised from 0.25% to 
0.50% on 2.11.17 and remained at that level for the rest of the 
year.  However, further increases are expected over the next few 
years. Deposit rates continued into the start of 2017/18 at 
previous depressed levels due, in part, to a large tranche of cheap 
financing being made available under the Term Funding Scheme 
to the banking sector by the Bank of England; this facility ended 
on 28.2.18. 

(Commentary and graph provided by Link Asset Services)

Page 103



 

14

9. Investment Outturn for 2017/18

Investment Policy – the Council’s investment policy is governed 
by MHCLG guidance, which has been implemented in the annual 
investment strategy approved by the Council on 1st March 2017.  
This policy sets out the approach for choosing investment 
counterparties, and is based on credit ratings provided by the 
three main credit rating agencies, supplemented by additional 
market data, (such as rating outlooks, credit default swaps, bank 
share prices etc.).  

The investment activity during the year conformed to the 
approved strategy, and the Council had no liquidity difficulties. 

Investments held by the Council - the Council maintained an 
average balance of £49.1m of internally managed funds.  The 
internally managed funds earned an average rate of return of 
0.51%.  This exceeds comparable performance indicators detailed 
in the table below: 

BenchmarkAverage Internal 
Investments

Return
7 day LIBID 1 Month 3 Month

£49.1m 0.51% 0.2145% 0.2331% 0.2861 %

Investments held by Property Funds  – the Council approved 
the use of property funds up to a value of £20m, at the time of 
investment.  Working with our advisors at Capita Asset Services, 
two funds were chosen, Lothbury Property Trust and Hermes 
Property Unit Trust. Both funds had waiting lists to invest.  The 
invitation to invest in the Lothbury fund arose in June 2015 and 
the Hermes fund in December 2015.  The performances of these 
funds for 2017/18 are detailed below:

Page 104



 

15

Property Fund 
Investments 

Held
Average Net 

Return
Lothbury Property 
Trust

£10m 3.36 %

Hermes Property 
Unit Trust

£10m 3.92 %

The 2017/18 budget for interest was increased to £1,084,000 from 
£920,000. Consistent low interest returns meant that the outturn 
came in just under budget at £1,033,000.  

Page 105



 

16

10.  Other Issues

1. Revised CIPFA Codes

In December 2017, the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 
Accountancy, (CIPFA), issued a revised Treasury Management 
Code and Cross Sectoral Guidance Notes, and a revised 
Prudential Code. 

A particular focus of these revised codes was how to deal with 
local authority investments which are not treasury type 
investments e.g. by investing in purchasing property in order to 
generate income for the Authority at a much higher level than can 
be attained by treasury investments.  One recommendation was 
that local authorities should produce a new report to members to 
give a high level summary of the overall capital strategy and to 
enable members to see how the cash resources of the Authority 
have been apportioned between treasury and non-treasury 
investments. Officers will report to members when the 
implications of these new codes have been assessed as to the 
likely impact on this Authority.

2. Markets in Financial Instruments Directive II (MiFID II)

The EU set the date of 3rd January 2018 for the introduction of 
regulations under MIFID II.  These regulations govern the 
relationship that financial institutions conducting lending and 
borrowing transactions will have with local authorities from that 
date. This has had little effect on this Authority apart from having 
to fill in forms sent by each institution dealing with this Authority 
and for each type of investment instrument we use, apart from 
for cash deposits with banks and building societies.   

Page 106



 

17

Appendix 1: Prudential and Treasury Indicators

During 2017/18, the Council complied with its legislative and 
regulatory requirements.  The key actual prudential and 
treasury indicators detailing the impact of capital expenditure 
activities during the year, with comparators, are as follows:

Actual prudential and treasury 
indicators

2016/17
Actual
£000

2017/18
Original

£000

2017/18
Actual
£000

Capital expenditure 2,813 3,386 2,389

Capital Financing Requirement (23,079) (20,935) (23,079)

Gross borrowing 0 0 0

External debt 7,500 7,500 7,500

Investments 61,806 60,000 65,918*

Net borrowing (54,306) (54,500) (58,418)

*Year-end investment balances finished higher than originally estimated due to increased preserve 
right to buy receipts and capital programme slippage.  

Gross borrowing and the CFR - in order to ensure that 
borrowing levels are prudent over the medium term and only 
for a capital purpose, the Council should ensure that its gross 
external borrowing does not, except in the short term, exceed 
the total of the capital financing requirement in the preceding 
year (2017/18) plus the estimates of any additional capital 
financing requirement for the current (2018/19) and next two 
financial years. This essentially means that the Council is not 
borrowing to support revenue expenditure. This indicator 
allows the Council some flexibility to borrow in advance of its 
immediate capital needs in 2017/18.  

Page 107



 

18

The authorised limit - the authorised limit is the “affordable 
borrowing limit” required by s3 of the Local Government Act 
2003.  Once this has been set, the Council does not have the 
power to borrow above this level.  The table below 
demonstrates that during 2017/18 the Council has maintained 
gross borrowing within its authorised limit. 

The operational boundary – the operational boundary is the 
expected borrowing position of the Council during the year.  
Periods where the actual position is either below or over the 
boundary is acceptable subject to the authorised limit not 
being breached. 

Actual financing costs as a proportion of net revenue 
stream - this indicator identifies the trend in the cost of capital 
(borrowing and other long term obligation costs net of 
investment income) against the net revenue stream.

2017/18

Authorised limit £11.7m

Maximum gross borrowing position £7.5m

Operational boundary £7.5m

Average gross borrowing position £7.5m

Financing costs as a proportion of net revenue stream 4.57%

Page 108



 

19

Overall Treasury Position as at 31 March 2018

At the beginning and the end of 2017/18 the Council‘s treasury 
(excluding borrowing by finance leases) position was as follows:

The maturity structure of the debt portfolio was as follows:

31 March 
2017

actual

2017/18
original 
limits

31 March 
2018

actual
Under 12 months £0m £0m £0m
12 months and within 24 
months

£0m £0m £0m

24 months and within 5 
years

£6m £6m £6m

5 years and within 10 years £0m £0m £0m
10 years and within 20 years £0m £0m £0m
20 years and within 30 years £0m £0m £0m
30 years and within 40 years £1.5m £1.5m £1.5m
40 years and within 50 years £0m £0m £0m

31st 
March 
2017 

Principal

Rate/ 
Return

Average 
Life Yrs.

31st 
March 
2018 

Principal

Rate/ 
Return

Average 
Life Yrs.

Fixed rate funding: 

-PWLB £1.5m 8.875% 38 £1.5m 8.875% 37

-Market £6m 8.785% 3 £6m 8.785% 2
Variable rate 
funding

None None

Total debt £7.5m £7.5m
CFR (£23.1m) (£23.1m)
Over/ (under) 
borrowing

£7.5m £7.5m

Total investments £61.8m £65.9m

Net debt (£54.3m) (£58.4m)

Page 109



 

20

The maturity structure of the investment portfolio was as follows:

2016/17
Actual
£000

2017/18
Original

£000

2017/18
Actual
£000

Investments
  Longer than 1 year
  Under 1 year  

20,000
41,806

20,000
40,000

20,000
45,918

Total 61,806 60,000 65,918

The exposure to fixed and variable rates was as follows:

31st March 
2017

Actual
£000

31st March 
2018

Actual
£000

Fixed rate (principal or 
interest) based on net debt

 Debt
 Investments

100%

50%

100%

50%

Variable rate (principal or 
interest) based on net debt

 Debt
 Investments

0%

50%

0%

50%

Page 110



 

21

Appendix 3: Graphs   

Please find below graphs provided by Link Asset Services.

UK, US and EZ GDP growth 

Inflation UK, US, Germany and France

Page 111



 

22

Appendix 4: Borrowing and investment rates

Please find below supplementary graphs and tables provided by Link 
Asset Services. 

1. PWLB borrowing rates

0.75

1.00

1.25

1.50

1.75

2.00

2.25

2.50

2.75

3.00
PW LB cert aint y  rat e v ar iat ions A pr il 2017 - M arch 2018

3- A pr- 17 29- M ar- 18 A v erage

1 1-1.5 2.5-3 3.5-4 4.5-5 9.5-10 24.5-25 49.5-50
1 month 
variable

3/4/17 0.850% 0.870% 1.000% 1.120% 1.250% 1.930% 2.620% 2.370% 1.100%
29/3/18 1.470% 1.520% 1.670% 1.760% 1.850% 2.230% 2.570% 2.290% 1.090%
High 1.510% 1.600% 1.790% 1.900% 2.010% 2.530% 2.930% 2.640% 1.310%
Low 0.800% 0.820% 0.940% 1.030% 1.140% 1.780% 2.520% 2.250% 1.040%

Average 1.107% 1.143% 1.276% 1.384% 1.503% 2.083% 2.688% 2.415% 1.157%
Spread 0.710% 0.780% 0.850% 0.870% 0.870% 0.750% 0.410% 0.390% 0.270%

High date 21/03/2018 21/03/2018 21/03/2018 21/03/2018 15/02/2018 15/02/2018 15/02/2018 15/02/2018 21/03/2018
Low date 03/05/2017 03/05/2017 30/05/2017 15/06/2017 15/06/2017 15/06/2017 08/09/2017 08/09/2017 04/04/2017

1 Year 5 Year 10 Year 25 Year 50 Year
1/4/17 0.85% 1.25% 1.93% 2.62% 2.37%
31/3/18 1.47% 1.85% 2.23% 2.57% 2.29%

Low 0.80% 1.14% 1.78% 2.52% 2.25%
Date 03/05/2017 15/06/2017 15/06/2017 08/09/2017 08/09/2017
High 1.51% 2.01% 2.53% 2.93% 2.64%
Date 21/03/2018 15/02/2018 15/02/2018 15/02/2018 15/02/2018

Average 1.11% 1.50% 2.08% 2.69% 2.41%

Page 112



 

23

2. Money market investment rates 2017/18

Page 113



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

Shared Internal Audit 
Service 

 
Annual Report 

 

2017/18 
 

Page 115

Agenda Item 8



Shared Internal Audit Service Annual Report 2017/18 

Annual Report Contents 
 
Introduction & Highlights 1 

Levels of Delivery 2 

Shared learning – The Power of Partnership 3 

Developing Our Processes 4 

First Class Customer Service 5 

Performance - Outcomes 6 

Performance Indicators 7 

Future Developments 8 

Our Board Members 9 

Appendix A:  SIAS Trading Account  10 

Appendix B:  Definitions  11 

 

 

 

  

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

Page 116

http://www.stevenage.gov.uk/
http://www.hertsmere.gov.uk/Home.aspx
http://www.hertsdirect.org/


Shared Internal Audit Service Annual Report 2017/18 

Page 1 

Introduction and Highlights 
 
Welcome to the Shared Internal Audit Service (SIAS) Annual Report for 
2017/18.    
 
Since the Service was established in 2011, one of its key business delivery 
objectives has been to work in a manner that demonstrates a practical 
understanding of the pressures that its partners face. This is something 
that is even more important given the current financial climate.    
 
To this end, in 2017/18 SIAS worked with partners to revise the Service’s 
structure with a view to accommodating an agreed reduction in the level of 
audit work commissioned whilst still ensuring that the Service was able to 
provide appropriate levels of coverage to fulfil its statutory obligations.   
 
As part of this process, SIAS sought to ensure that client audit plans were 
delivered with the optimum blend of internal and external resource; 
something that would not only satisfy its current client commitments in the 
most efficient and cost effective manner, but which would also future proof 
the Service in the medium to long term.   
 
All of this has only been possible with the commitment and dedication of 
both, the in-house team and our external service provider, as well as the 
co-operation of our partners.  When looking to the future, the Service will 
continue to combine its understanding of local government practices with a 
growing knowledge of the risks and controls associated with private sector 
business approaches; something that is needed to help partners as they 
evolve in that direction. 
 
We are very proud of the work of the SIAS Team and are delighted to be 
able to share some of the highlights of our working year in this report. 

 

Terry Barnett and Chris Wood 

Head of Assurance for the Shared Internal Audit Service / 
SIAS Audit Manager 

June 2018 

 

 

Page 117



Shared Internal Audit Service Annual Report 2017/18 

Page 2 

Levels of Delivery 
 
Whilst the Service faced some challenges during the year arising from staff 
sickness absences and vacancies held over in lieu of the service 
restructure, it nonetheless very nearly achieved its overall target of 
delivering 95% of days commissioned by clients.  In the final analysis, this 
was 94% and is a testament to the hard work and resilience of the SIAS 
Team. 
 
Despite the challenges referred to above, the Service was also able to 
deliver 93% of its audit reviews to draft report stage by the close of the 
year and through the prioritisation of outstanding work in the final quarter 
ensured that this did not impact on the integrity of the assurance opinions 
given to clients.  

Figure 1: Percentage of audits days delivered 

 

Figure 2: Percentage of audits to draft stage 

Good 
performance 
despite resilience 
challenges… 

Page 118



Shared Internal Audit Service Annual Report 2017/18 

Page 3 

Shared Learning - The Power of Partnership 
Shared learning happens through the dialogue we have with others. It has 
long been part of the vision of our Board that the service acts to facilitate 
the sharing of learning across its partners. A shared learning culture, both 
formal and informal, is embedded through our team, our sister services 
within Assurance and across our partners and opportunities abound to 
publicise and promote issues big and small.  
 
Over the course of 2017/18, our quarterly shared learning papers 
continued to be a regular feature at management boards, governance 
groups and team meetings across our partners. General learning points 
arising from our work and the wider local government environment have 
been disseminated through our regular papers with contributions from 
across our Assurance Service. The highlight of the last year was a special 
edition covering the topical issue of GDPR Preparedness. This dovetailed 
neatly with the rollout of GDPR audits across our partners. At the time of 
going to press on this Board report, planning had commenced on the next 
shared learning paper reviewing the high priority recommendations arising 
from our work across all partners. 
 
In addition to our shared learning papers and newsletters, we hosted a 
very well received workshop for our partners and other stakeholders on 
Local Authority Trading and Commercial Governance, utilising the 
commercial expertise of our co-sourced audit delivery partners BDO.  
 

 
 
During the course of the year, we facilitated a cross-partner process of self-
assessment against the National Crime Agency’s Serious Organised Crime 
Checklist and will be sharing the key themes arising from that exercise so 
that our partners can learn from mutual good practice. 
 
Our involvement with ‘Audit Together’, a strategic alliance of similar audit 
partnerships, our audit delivery partners (BDO) and an array of contacts 
through bodies such as the Home Counties Chief Internal Auditors Group 
have been invaluable in sharing experiences and ideas that help us to 
develop as a service in response to client need and the ever evolving field 
of internal audit. Our staff, partners and Audit Committee members 
continue to provide helpful challenge, which causes us to pause and think 
about matters big and small, whether about assurance levels, 
recommendation priorities, professional judgement and intellectual curiosity 
or about our skills, performance, systems and culture. 

 

Our quarterly shared 
learning papers are 
now a regular feature at 
management boards, 
governance groups and 
team meetings across 
our partners  

Page 119



Shared Internal Audit Service Annual Report 2017/18 

Page 4 

Developing Our Processes 
SIAS is committed to providing its services to clients in the most cost 
effective and resilient way possible. The development of its in-house time 
recording and audit plan management system is an excellent example of a 
service development that has delivered on both counts. 
 
For SIAS, a time recording system is an integral part of its business 
processes, providing the performance data for the Management Team to 
oversee progress on audit plan delivery for individual clients or the whole 
service.  Similarly, it is an important element of the performance 
management mechanisms for the staff within the Service. 
 
Since its creation in 2011 SIAS, had been using a modified version of a 
proprietary Audit Management System product, incurring costs for both 
licensing and maintenance.  As the Service developed, it became clear that 
this solution was not able to provide the level of detailed management 
information that the Management Team required for effective performance 
management at a variety of levels.  Further, the approach of using an 
external supplier always carried a risk associated with continuity of service. 
 
To address these issues, the SIAS Management Team commissioned the 
County Council’s Improvement Team to modify an existing time recording 
system that it had developed for another County Council Service.  This 
new solution has now been in operation within SIAS since May 2017 and is 
successfully meeting the needs of the Service whilst also providing 
opportunities for further service improvements. 
 
The technology for the new system is based around established Microsoft 
products (Excel and Access) and the costs associated with system 
maintenance are absorbed within existing corporate overheads. This has 
allowed the Service to not only secure a financial saving of circa £3,000 
per annum but, more importantly, to future proof its existing business 
processes. 
   
 

 

Financial savings 
combined with 
greater resilience…  

 

Page 120



Shared Internal Audit Service Annual Report 2017/18 

Page 5 

First Class Customer Service 
 
In order to monitor our effectiveness and improve our service, at the end of 
each assignment we request the completion of a short satisfaction survey.  
We have been given and have acted upon invaluable improvement ideas, 
and we are proud of the fact that in 2017/18 we have received 98% 
satisfactory or higher feedback rating from our customers; an improvement 
on the previous year. 

 

Some of the comments that accompany the formal scoring document are 
shown below:   

 

 “An excellent professional service was provided and we were kept 
informed fully throughout the audit” 
 

 “Clear understanding of process in place, transition being applied and 
recognition of best practice much appreciated. Extremely prompt 
delivery of Final Report” 

 

 “Very helpful report, answering key questions senior management 
were requesting” 
 

 “Just to say thanks for the time and effort put into this audit, the 
process has helped me as the Property manager to not only influence 
and direct staff to tighten up their processes and procedures which has 
in the past sometimes been difficult but also given some really good 
recommendations for us to action to improve the overall management 
of evidence. I now have the power of 'Internal Audit says' to back me! 
Thank you” 

 
 
 

“Very helpful report, 
answering key 
questions senior 
management were 
requesting” 

Page 121



Shared Internal Audit Service Annual Report 2017/18 

Page 6 

Performance - Outcomes 
 
SIAS worked on 292 assurance and other projects during the year, giving 
the assurance opinions and recommendations detailed in the charts below.   
 
For those pieces which resulted in a formal assurance opinion, the 
distribution of opinions is set out in figure 3 below: 

 
Figure 3:  Distribution of Audit Opinions 2017/18 
 

 
 

For those audits where recommendations were required, the priority ratings 
are set out in figure 4 below: 

 
Figure 4:  Prioritisation of Recommendations 2017/18 
 

292 assurance and 

other projects 

identifying 731 
recommendations 

Page 122



Shared Internal Audit Service Annual Report 2017/18 

Page 7 

Performance Indicators  
 
The overall business performance of SIAS is monitored by the SIAS Board 
by means of a balanced scorecard which provides a range of measures by 
which progress can be evaluated. 
 
The overall performance of SIAS against our key performance indicators is 
reported below. 

Table 1: SIAS Business Performance 

Indicator Target Actual as at 
31 March 

2017 

Actual as at 
31 March 

2018 

Commentary  

Progress against 
plan: actual days 
delivered as a 
percentage of 
planned days. 

95% 95% 94% 

 

Despite resilience 
challenges in year, the 
service nonetheless 
came very close to 
achieving both of its 
targets.  

 

Progress against 
plan: audits issued 
in draft by 31 
March  

95% 86% 93% 

 

Client satisfaction  

 

Satisfactory 
and above 

 

95% 95% 
Continued good 
performance in this area 

 

 

Financial Performance of SIAS  
SIAS began operating on a fully traded basis in 2012/13. 
 
Appendix A sets out the summary financial position at 31 March 2018.  
The partners determined that the service should aim to build a small 
surplus and to consider the financial position of the service on a three year 
rolling basis.   
 
The intention of this is to smooth the impact of any unforeseen events 
impacting on trading performance in future years. 

 

Page 123



Shared Internal Audit Service Annual Report 2017/18 

Page 8 

Future Developments 
 

 
  
Following the completion of the SIAS restructure in 2017/18, the coming 
year has a strong focus on consolidation, stability and revisiting the ‘nuts 
and bolts’ of the service to ensure that we have sound foundations for the 
future. 
 
Our focus will be on:  
 

 Developing and enhancing the role of our Client Audit Managers,  

 Reviewing and refining our shared learning offering,  

 Updating our SIAS guidance, templates, processes and procedures,  

 Further integrating and simplifying of our performance, work allocation 
and information systems, 

 Revisiting training and skills needs, as well as technical updates,  

 Retendering for our co-sourced audit delivery partners, and 

 Completing recruitment to our new Trainee Auditor posts. 
 
The changing face of service delivery within Local Government also 
presents the Service with new challenges and a need to provide higher 
levels of consultancy advice on the control aspect of the commercial 
ventures that clients are engaging in. 
 
The increased use of, or access to, data analytics tools is likely to become 
a key feature in the work of the Service going forward.  The use of these 
tools will allow the Service to facilitate delivery of the widest coverage of 
process driven areas.

Page 124



Shared Internal Audit Service Annual Report 2017/18 

Page 9 

Our Board Members 
The SIAS Board provides strategic direction and oversight for the 
partnership, bringing a wealth of local government experience and insight 
to our operation. 

In 2017/18, our Board members were as follows: 

 

Clare Fletcher Assistant Director 
(Finance and Estates) 

Stevenage Borough 
Council 

Sajida Bijle Corporate Director Hertsmere Borough 
Council 

Steven 
Pilsworth 

Assistant Director 
Finance, Resources & 
Performance 

Hertfordshire County 
Council 

Ian Couper Service Director 
(Resources) 

North Hertfordshire 
District Council 

Ka Ng Executive Director – 
Resources, Environment 
and Cultural Services 

Welwyn Hatfield 
Borough Council 

Isabel Brittain Head of Strategic Finance 
& Property 

East Herts Council 

Jo Wagstaffe Shared Director of 
Finance 

Watford Borough 
Council and Three 
Rivers District Council 

Terry Barnett Head of Assurance SIAS 

 

  

 

Page 125



Appendix A: SIAS TRADING ACCOUNT 2017/18 

Page 10 

SIAS cost centre: revised budget against outturn 2017/18 
 

     Budget  Outturn  

     £  £  

 

Salaries & Salary Related     1,145,981  1,061,892  

Partner / Consultancy Costs     73,125  213,038  

Transport     8,500  5,904  

Supplies     18,483  9,048  

Office Accommodation Cost     17,005  17,005  

         

Total expenditure     1,263,094  1,306,887  

     

Income     1,279,034  1,313,530  

Net (surplus) / deficit    (15,940)  (6,643)  

 

 

Page 126



Appendix B: Definitions Of Assurance Levels and Priority of Recommendations 

Page 11 

 
 
 
 

Levels of assurance  

Full Assurance There is a sound system of control designed to achieve the system objectives and 
manage the risks to achieving those objectives. No weaknesses have been identified. 

Substantial Assurance Whilst there is a largely sound system of control, there are some minor weaknesses, 
which may put a limited number of the system objectives at risk. 

Moderate Assurance Whilst there is basically a sound system of control, there are some areas of weakness, 
which may put some of the system objectives at risk. 

Limited Assurance There are significant weaknesses in key control areas, which put the system objectives 
at risk. 

No Assurance Control is weak, leaving the system open to material error or abuse. 

 

Priority of recommendations 

High There is a fundamental weakness, which presents material risk to the objectives and 
requires urgent attention by management. 

Medium There is a significant weakness, whose impact or frequency presents a risk which 
needs to be addressed by management. 

Merits Attention There is no significant weakness, but the finding merits attention by management. 

Page 127



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

East Herts Council

Performance, Audit and Governance 
Scrutiny Committee 
4 September 2018

Shared Internal Audit Service – 
Progress Report  

Recommendation

Members are recommended to:
a) Note the Internal Audit Progress Report
b) Note the Status of Critical and High Priority
    Recommendations

Page 129

Agenda Item 9



Contents

1. Introduction and Background

1.1   Purpose
1.2   Background

2. Internal Audit Plan Update

2.1   Delivery of Internal Audit Plan and Key Findings
2.6   Critical and High Priority Recommendations
2.8 Internal Audit Plan Amendments
2.9   Performance Management

Appendices:

A     Progress against the 2018/19 Internal Audit Plan
B Implementation Status of Critical and High Priority 

Recommendations
C Internal Audit Plan Items - Start Dates Agreed With
       Management
D Assurance Definitions / Priority Levels

Page 130



1. Introduction and Background
Purpose of Report

1.1 This report details:

a) The progress made by the Shared Internal Audit Service (SIAS) in 
delivering the Council’s 2018/19 Internal Audit Plan as at 17 August 
2018.

b) The findings for the period to 17 August 2018.
c) The implementation status of previously agreed Internal Audit 

recommendations.
d) An update on performance management information as at 17 

August 2018.

Background

1.2 The 2018/19 Internal Audit Plan was approved by the Performance, 
Audit and Governance Scrutiny Committee on 13 March 2018. The 
Performance, Audit and Governance Scrutiny Committee receive 
periodic updates of progress with delivering the Internal Audit Plan. 

1.3 The work of Internal Audit is required to be reported to a Member Body 
so that the Council has an opportunity to review and monitor an 
essential component of corporate governance and gain assurance that 
its internal audit provision is fulfilling its statutory obligations. It is 
considered good practice that progress reports also include proposed 
amendments to the agreed Internal Audit Plan.

2. Internal Audit Plan Update
Delivery of Internal Audit Plan and Key Audit Findings

2.1 As at 17 August 2018, 36% of the 2018/19 Internal Audit Plan days had 
been delivered (calculation excludes contingency days that have not 
yet been allocated). 

2.2 As at 17 August 2018 the following 2018/19 projects have been 
finalised: 

Audit Title Date of 
Issue

Assurance 
Level

Number of 
Recommendations

Payroll Pension 
Certificate April 2018 N/A N/A

Freedom of 
Information July 2018 Satisfactory Three Medium, One 

Low/Advisory

Business Grants Aug 2018 Limited Four Medium, One 
Low/Advisory

Performance Mgmt. / Aug 2018 Satisfactory One Medium, One 

Page 131



Data Quality Low/Advisory
CCTV (joint internal 
audit) Aug 2018 Limited Nine High

2.3 The table below also summarises the position with regard to 2018/19 
projects as at 17 August 2018. Appendix A provides a status update on 
each individual project within the 2018/19 Internal Audit Plan. Details of 
agreed start dates for the individual projects are also shown in 
Appendix C.

Status No of Audits at this Stage % of Total Audits

Final Report 5 16%

Draft Report 2 6%

In Fieldwork 4 12%

In Planning/ToR Issued 3 10%

Allocated 17 53%

Cancelled 1 3%

Total 32 100%

2.4 The following 2017/18 project has been finalised in the period since the 
last Performance, Audit and Governance Scrutiny Committee:

Audit Title Date of 
Issue

Assurance 
Level

Number of 
Recommendations

New Payroll System – 
Rollout of Self Service Aug 2018 N/A N/A

2.5 The following 2017/18 draft report has also been issued and awaits a 
management response:

Audit Title Date of 
Issue

Assurance 
Level

Number of 
Recommendations

Cyber Security Mar 2018 Limited
Three High
Two Medium
Three Merits Attention

Critical and High Priority Recommendations

2.6 A final Internal Audit report is issued when agreed by management. 
This includes an agreement to implement recommendations that have 
been made. It is SIAS’s responsibility to bring to the attention of 
Members the implementation status of critical and high priority 

Page 132



recommendations; it is the responsibility of Officers to implement the 
recommendations by the agreed date.  

2.7 The current position in respect of existing outstanding critical and high 
priority recommendations is shown at Appendix B.

Proposed Internal Audit Plan Amendments

2.8  The following changes to the 2017/18 Internal Audit Plan were 
approved at the last meeting of this Committee. 

a)  Land Charges - audit cancelled and days returned to contingency.
b)  CCTV - joint internal audit resourced from contingency.

No further changes have been proposed since the last meeting of this
Committee.

Performance Management

2.9 Annual performance indicators and associated targets were approved 
by the SIAS Board in March 2018 and are reviewed annually.  

2.10 The actual performance for East Herts Council against the targets that 
can be monitored in year is set out in the table below.

Performance Indicator Annual 
Target

Profiled 
Target 

Actual to 17 
August 2018

1. Planned Days – percentage of 
actual billable days against 
planned chargeable days 
completed (excluding unused 
contingency)

95% 32% (112 / 
345 days)

36% (124.5 / 
345 days)

2. Planned Projects – percentage 
of actual completed projects to 
draft report stage against planned 
completed projects

95%
26% (8 / 31 
projects to 

draft)

23% (7 / 31
projects to 

draft)

3. Client Satisfaction – 
percentage of client satisfaction 
questionnaires returned at 
‘satisfactory’ level 

100% 100%
100% (4 

returned to 
date)

4. Number of Critical and High 
Priority Audit Recommendations 
agreed

95% 95%
100% (9 

High priority 
agreed)

 

Page 133



APPENDIX A: PROGRESS AGAINST THE 2018/19 INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN

RECS
AUDITABLE AREA LEVEL OF 

ASSURANCE H M LA

AUDIT 
PLAN
DAYS

LEAD
AUDITOR

ASSIGNED
BILLABLE DAYS 

COMPLETED STATUS/COMMENT

Key Financial Systems – 77 days
Asset Management 10 Yes 0 Allocated
Council Tax 6 Yes 0 Allocated
Creditors 10 Yes 0 Allocated
Debtors 10 Yes 0 Allocated
General Ledger 10 Yes 0 Allocated
Housing Benefits & Rent Allowances 6 Yes 0 Allocated
NDR 6 Yes 0 Allocated
Payroll 12 Yes 0 Allocated
Payroll Certificate NA 0 0 0 1 Yes 1 Complete
Treasury Management 6 Yes 0 Allocated
Operational Audits – 124 days
Development Management 12 Yes 5 In Fieldwork
S106 Agreements (spend 
arrangements) 10 Yes 0.5 In Planning

Business Grants Scheme Limited 0 4 1 8 Yes 8 Final Report Issued
Performance Mgmt. / Data Quality Satisfactory 0 1 1 10 Yes 10 Final Report Issued
Land Charges 1 N/A 1 Cancelled
Freedom of Information Satisfactory 0 3 1 8 Yes 8 Final Report Issued
GDPR – PIR 10 Yes 2.5 In Planning
Homelessness Reduction Act / 
Temporary Accommodation 12 Yes 0 Allocated

Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMOs) 10 Yes 3 In Fieldwork
Herts Home Improvement Agency 2 Yes 0 Allocated
Digital East Herts 12 Yes 2.5 In Planning

Page 134



AUDITABLE AREA LEVEL OF 
ASSURANCE

RECS AUDIT 
PLAN
DAYS

LEAD
AUDITOR

ASSIGNED
BILLABLE DAYS 

COMPLETED STATUS/COMMENT
H M LA

Agency Staffing 12 Yes 7.5 In Fieldwork
Commercialisation / Income 
Generation 12 Yes 0 Allocated

DFG Capital Grant Certification 1 Yes 0 Allocated
CCTV – joint internal audit Limited 9 0 0 2 Yes 2 Final Report Issued
Garden Town - Project Assurance 2 Yes 1.5 In progress
Procurement – 29 days
Waste Contract – client services, trade 
waste 15 Yes 0 Allocated

Compliance Monitoring Contract 2 Yes 0 Allocated
Contract Management 12 Yes 12 Draft Report Issued
IT Audits – 30 days
Cyber Security 6 Yes 0 Allocated
Incident Management 6 Yes 0 Allocated
Mobile Device Management and BYOD 6 Yes 6 Draft Report Issued
TSS Improvement Plan - Governance 12 Yes 9 In Fieldwork
Shared Learning – 8 days
Shared Learning Newsletters / 
Summary Themed Reports / Joint 
Reviews

8 N/A 1 In Progress

Risk Management – 0 days
No audits
Anti-Fraud – 3 days
Anti-Fraud – Controls Review 3 N/A 0 Through Year
Strategic Support – 51 days
2019/20 Audit Planning 10 N/A 0 Through Year

Page 135



AUDITABLE AREA LEVEL OF 
ASSURANCE

RECS AUDIT 
PLAN
DAYS

LEAD
AUDITOR

ASSIGNED
BILLABLE DAYS 

COMPLETED STATUS/COMMENT
H M LA

Audit Committee 12 N/A 6.5 Through Year
Client Meetings 10 N/A 3 Through Year
Liaison with External Audit 1 N/A 0.5 Through Year
Head of Internal Audit Opinion 2017/18 4 N/A 4 Complete
Plan Monitoring 9 N/A 4 Through Year
SIAS Development 5 N/A 5 Through Year
Contingency – 15 days
Contingency 15 N/A 0 Not yet allocated
Follow Ups – 3 days
Follow up of priority recommendations 3 N/A 1 Through Year
2017/18 Projects requiring 
completion – 20 days
Various 20 Yes 20 Complete
EHC TOTAL 360 124.5

Page 136



APPENDIX B: IMPLEMENTATION STATUS OF HIGH PRIORITY RECOMMENDATIONS

  No. Report Title / 
Date of Issue

Recommendation Management 
Response

Responsible 
Officer

Original Target 
Date

Management 
Comments 

SIAS 
Comment 

(August 2018)

1. Tree Surveying 
(May 2017)

It is recommended that 
the service is let in 
accordance with the 
Council’s contract 
standing orders for 
future years.

To retender the 
tree risk 
inspection 
contract and to 
design and 
procure a new 
schedule of 
works based 
maintenance 
contract.

Parks and Open 
Spaces Manager

31 March 2018

Revised to:
31 March 2019

December 2017
The specification is 
drafted for the 
inspection contract and 
just needs some final 
modifications to ensure 
it will provide the 
necessary platform for 
the maintenance 
works.  We should be 
able to get that out for 
tender this month and 
therefore in time to 
have the contract 
renewed and running 
by March 31st 2018.

February 2018
No update provided.

July 2018
No update provided.

August 2018
Members approved a 
report in July 2018 that 
confirmed tree works 
would be included in 
the Grounds Contact. 

Not 
implemented – 
continue to 
monitor

Page 137



  No. Report Title / 
Date of Issue

Recommendation Management 
Response

Responsible 
Officer

Original Target 
Date

Management 
Comments 

SIAS 
Comment 

(August 2018)

Officers are now 
working with a 
procurement 
consultant to write a 
specification and 
Information to 
Tenderers. 

2. IT Disaster 
Recovery 
(Post-Incident)
(January 2018)

Additional connectivity 
should be added to the 
IT network so that the 
single point of failure 
for Stevenage Borough 
Council is addressed.

Agreed.

Additional 
connectivity 
options are being 
considered and 
will be 
implemented as 
part of the 
outcomes from 
the IT Disaster 
Recovery review 
in January 2018.

Interim Senior IT 
Manager

31 August 2018 February 2018
This will be developed 
following the 
establishment of the 
Disaster Recovery 
Plan.

July 2018
Options are being 
costed and will be 
presented to the IT 
Partnership. The 
generator has been 
installed at Daneshill 
House to improve 
resilience.

August 2018
Next update will be 
October 2018.

Partially 
implemented – 
continue to 
monitor

3. IT Disaster 
Recovery 

Working with 
stakeholders from both 

Agreed. Interim Senior IT 31 March 2018 February 2018
BDO have been 

Partially 
implemented – 

Page 138



  No. Report Title / 
Date of Issue

Recommendation Management 
Response

Responsible 
Officer

Original Target 
Date

Management 
Comments 

SIAS 
Comment 

(August 2018)

(Post-Incident)
(January 2018)

Councils, Senior 
Management must 
define the recovery 
time and point 
objectives for critical IT 
systems and 
determine the order by 
which they should be 
recovered by the 
Service.

Where the Service is 
unable to achieve 
these objectives, the 
relevant IT system 
owner must identify 
alternative recovery 
solutions.

The Service should put 
in place a defined IT 
disaster recovery plan, 
which is aligned to the 
Councils’ continuity 
planning.

A review of IT 
Disaster 
Recovery 
arrangements will 
be undertaken, 
which will re-
establish the 
councils’ 
business 
requirements and 
identify the 
technical 
solutions needed.

Manager commissioned to 
provide expertise and 
support to the review 
of Disaster Recovery 
Planning. This will be 
further supported by 
the expected team 
restructure once the 
new lead post has 
been recruited to. In 
the meantime, the IT 
team continue to 
progress this work, 
supported by experts 
from outside of the 
organisations.

July 2018
The lead IT recruitment 
was unsuccessful in 
Round 1 but an offer 
has been made to a 
candidate in Round 2. 
It is expected that the 
new lead will be in post 
by September. In the 
meantime, the IT 
service is being 
supported by a 
SOCITM interim.

continue to 
monitor

Page 139



  No. Report Title / 
Date of Issue

Recommendation Management 
Response

Responsible 
Officer

Original Target 
Date

Management 
Comments 

SIAS 
Comment 

(August 2018)

August 2018
Next update will be 
October 2018.

4. IT Disaster 
Recovery 
(Post-Incident)
(January 2018)

Management should 
define the processing 
capacity threshold at 
which it is no longer 
possible for a data 
centre to operate as 
the single data centre. 

This should be 
monitored and, where 
exceeded, appropriate 
action should be taken.

Capacity 
requirements will 
be considered as 
part of identifying 
the technical 
solution within the 
planned review of 
IT Disaster 
Recovery Plans.

More formal 
improved 
capacity 
management 
processes will be 
introduced as 
part of the IT 
Service’s 
adoption of ITIL.

Interim Senior IT 
Manager

31 March 2018

31 December 
2018

February 2018
Additional hardware is 
being purchased to 
enable greater 
capacity. This initial 
mitigation will be in 
place by April 2018. 
This will enable the re-
provisioning of a 
greater number of 
remote desktops 
across both councils 
should a data centre 
be lost. 

IT staff have 
undergone initial ITIL 
training and the 
learning has started to 
be transferred to the 
workplace. Further 
training will continue 
on an on-going basis. 

July 2018
Through the SOCITM 
interim, ITIL principles 

Partially 
implemented – 
continue to 
monitor

Page 140



  No. Report Title / 
Date of Issue

Recommendation Management 
Response

Responsible 
Officer

Original Target 
Date

Management 
Comments 

SIAS 
Comment 

(August 2018)

are being 
implemented.

August 2018
Next update will be 
October 2018.

5. IT Disaster 
Recovery 
(Post-Incident)
(January 2018)

Management should 
assess the risk of the 
data centres becoming 
unavailable and, where 
necessary, revise the 
risk treatment plans.

Senior management at 
both Councils, 
supported by the 
Service, should 
perform a business 
impact assessment 
with regards to the loss 
of IT and define their 
respective risk 
appetites so that 
appropriate actions are 
taken by the Service.

Agreed.

The risk appetites 
of the councils 
will be considered 
and addressed as 
part of the 
planned review of 
IT Disaster 
Recovery Plans.

Interim Senior IT 
Manager

31 March 2018 February 2018
See item 3 above. This 
will be considered as 
part of the first phase 
of the review of 
Disaster Recovery 
Planning being 
supported by BDO.

July 2018
Currently being costed 
prior to presentation at 
Partnership Board.

August 2018
Next update will be 
October 2018.

Partially 
implemented – 
continue to 
monitor

Page 141



APPENDIX C: INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN ITEMS – START DATES AGREED WITH MANAGEMENT

Apr May Jun July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

Payroll 
Annual 
Pension 

Certificate

(Complete)

Business 
Grants 

Scheme

(Final Report 
Issued)

Freedom of 
Information

(Final Report 
Issued)

GDPR – PIR

(In Planning)

S106

(In 
Planning)

DFG Capital 
Grant 

Sign-Off

(Allocated)

Council Tax

(Allocated)

NDR

(Allocated)

Debtors

(Allocated)

Creditors

(Allocated)

HRA & 
Temporary 

Accom.

(Allocated)

Contract 
Mgmt.

(Draft Report 
Issued)

Agency 
Staffing

(In 
Fieldwork)

Land 
Charges

(Cancelled)

HMOs

(In 
Fieldwork)

Development 
Mgmt.

(In 
Fieldwork)

Housing 
Benefits 

(Allocated)

Payroll

(Allocated)

Asset 
Mgmt.

(Allocated)

Waste 
Contract

(Allocated)

TSS 
Improvement 
Plan – Cyber 

Security

(Allocated)

Mobile 
Device 

Mgmt. and 
Bring Your 

Own Device

(Draft Report 
Issued)

Performance 
Mgmt. / Data 

Quality

(Final Report 
Issued)

Digital East 
Herts

(In 
Planning)

Home 
Improvement 

Agency

(Allocated)

Commercial / 
Income 

Generation

(Allocated)

Compliance 
Monitoring 
Contract

(Allocated)

Main 
Accounting

(Allocated)

TSS 
Improvement 

Plan - 
Incident 
Mgmt.

(Allocated)

CCTV – joint 
internal audit

(Final Report 
Issued)

TSS 
Improvement 

Plan – 
Governance 
(b/f from Jan)

(In 
Fieldwork)

Treasury 
Mgmt.

(Allocated)

Page 142



APPENDIX D: ASSURANCE DEFINITIONS/PRIORITY LEVELS

Assurance Level Definition

Good
The design and operation of the internal control framework is effective, thereby ensuring that the key risks in scope are being 
well managed and core objectives will likely be achieved. There are minor reportable audit findings.

Satisfactory
The internal control framework is largely working well in managing the key risks in scope, with some audit findings related to 
the current arrangements.  

Limited
The system of internal control is only partially effective, with important audit findings in key areas. Improvement in the design 
and/or operation of the control environment is necessary to gain assurance risks are being managed to an acceptable level, 
and core objectives will be achieved.

No
The system of internal control has serious gaps, and controls are not effective in managing the key risks in scope. It is highly 
unlikely that core objectives will be met without urgent management intervention.

Priority Level Definition

Co
rp

or
at

e

Critical
Audit findings which, in the present state, represent a serious risk to the organisation as a whole, i.e. reputation, 
financial resources and / or compliance with regulations. Management action to implement the appropriate 
controls is required immediately.

High
Audit findings indicate a serious weakness or breakdown in control environment, which, if untreated by 
management intervention, is highly likely to put achievement of core service objectives at risk. Remedial action is 
required urgently.

Medium
Audit findings which, if not treated by appropriate management action, are likely to put achievement of some of 
the core service objectives at risk. Remedial action is required in a timely manner.Se

rv
ic

e

Low / Advisory
Audit findings indicate opportunities to implement good or best practice, which, if adopted, will enhance the 
control environment. The appropriate solution should be implemented as soon as is practically possible.Page 143



T
his page is intentionally left blank



EAST HERTS COUNCIL

PERFORMANCE, AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE SCURTINY: 4 SEPTEMBER 
2018

REPORT BY CHAIRMAN OF PERFORMANCE, AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE 

SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME

WARD(S) AFFECTED: none 

Purpose/Summary of Report

 To review and determine the future work programme of 
Performance, Audit and Governance Scrutiny Committee. 

RECOMMENDATION FOR DECISION:

(A) the work programme shown in this report (Essential 
Reference Paper B attached) be agreed. 

1.0 Background 

1.1 Items previously required, identified or suggested for the PAG 
work programme are set out in Essential Reference Paper ‘B’.

1.2 Scrutiny committees have the power of influence and are 
entitled to review and scrutinise the functions of the Council 
and the decisions of the Executive.   The Committee serves as a 
‘critical friend’ and is not a decision-making body but can make 
recommendations to the Executive.  

in have the p

Page 145

Agenda Item 10



ower of influence and are entitled to review and 
2.0 Report

2.1 The draft agenda for 2018/19 meetings of PAG Committee is 
shown in Essential Reference Paper ‘B’.  The timing of some 
items shown may have to change depending on availability of 
essential data (eg. from central government) and officers.

2.2 Members are welcome to submit a scrutiny proposal at any 
time by completing a Scrutiny Proposal Form (Essential 
Reference Paper ‘C’) providing officers with sufficient 
information to ensure their specific questions are addressed. 
The Scrutiny Officer will then liaise with officers and the Scrutiny 
Chairman to consider the best way to address the subject and 
complete a scoping document. 

2.3 Members agreed to extend an invitation to an Executive 
Member to provide an overview on their portfolio, followed by 
questions from the Committee at each meeting. The Committee 
is asked to consider which Executive Members to invite to each 
meeting for 2018/19.

2.4 Members are asked whether there is any training relevant to 
scrutiny or to the function and remit of the PAG Committee that 
they wish to suggest. 

3.0 Implications/Consultations

3.1 Information on any corporate issues and consultation 
associated with this report can be found within Essential 
Reference Paper ‘A’.  

Background Papers:  none

Contact Member: PAG, Committee Chairman: Councillor M Pope 
mark.pope@eastherts.gov.uk

Page 146

mailto:mark.pope@eastherts.gov.uk


Contact Officer: Alison Stuart, Head of Legal and Democratic 
Services
alison.stuart@eastherts.gov.uk  
 

Report Author: Lorraine Blackburn, Democratic Services Officer 
lorraine.blackburn@eastherts.gov.uk

 

Page 147

mailto:alison.stuart@eastherts.gov.uk
mailto:lorraine.blackburn@eastherts.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



ESSENTIAL REFERENCE PAPER ‘A’

IMPLICATIONS/CONSULTATIONS

Contribution to 
the Council’s 
Corporate 
Priorities/ 
Objectives 
(delete as 
appropriate):

Priority 1 – Improve the health and wellbeing of our 
communities 

Priority 2 – Enhance the quality of people’s lives 

Priority 3 – Enable a flourishing local economy

Effective use of the scrutiny process contributes to the 
Council’s ability to meet one or more of its corporate 
objectives.

Consultation: Potential topics for scrutiny are always invited from 
the Executive and all Members and the public are 
asked through an annual item in the ‘council tax’ 
edition of LINK magazine which is delivered to every 
household.   Members of each scrutiny committee are 
consulted at every meeting as their work programme 
is a standing item on the agenda.

Legal: According to the Council’s constitution, the scrutiny 
committees are responsible for the setting of their 
own work programme in consultation with the 
Executive and in doing so they shall take into account 
wishes of members on that committee who are not 
members of the largest political group on the Council. 

Financial: There are no financial implications arising from this 
report.

Human 
Resource:

Any additional meetings and every task and finish 
group has resource needs linked to officer support 
activity and time for officers from the services to make 
the required input.

Risk 
Management:

Matters which may benefit from scrutiny may be 
overlooked.  The selection of inappropriate topics for 

Page 149



review would risk inefficient use of resources.  Where 
this involved partners, it could risk damaging the 
reputation of the council and relations with partners.

Health and 
wellbeing – 
issues and 
impacts:

The broad remit of scrutiny is to review topics which 
are of concern to the public, many of which have an 
indirect impact on the general wellbeing of residents 
of East Herts.

Equality Impact 
Assessment 
required:

Not required.

Page 150



Essential Reference Paper B

Performance, Audit & Governance Scrutiny (PAG) Committee Work Programme 2018/19

[NB: This is a working document and will be regularly subject to amendment]

Meeting Date Topic Lead Officer Notes

4 September 2018

Deadline 22 Aug

Annual Leisure Performance 
Report 2017

Jess Khanom, Head of 
Operations

Agreed at May 2017 
meeting. To go to this 
meeting or May/June 
2018

[NB: Last year Leisure 
Contract Year 8 report: 
Members asked that a 
fine breakdown of 
satisfaction data to show 
very/fairly etc. be 
included]

Moved from May as new  
officer not yet in 
position.Page 151



Essential Reference Paper B

AND invite Eric 
Buckmaster as portfolio 
holder

Q1 Financial Health Check 
Report(April – June 2018), and 
Medium Term Financial Plan 
Update 

Isabel Brittain, Head of 
Strategic Finance

Performance section: Ben 
Wood
Risk Management: 
Graham Mully

Treasury Management 
Strategy Review 17/18 
Outturn

Isabel Brittain, Head of 
Strategic Finance

Annual Audit Letter/Report 
and response to Audit Letter

Isabel Brittain, Head of 
Strategic Finance 
Natalie Clark, Ernst & 
Young

Email report deadline to 
Natalie Clark, EY

SIAS Shared Internal Audit 
Plan Update

Simon Martin HCC

Annual SIAS- Board Report 
2016-17

Simon Martin HCC

possibly combine these 
reports into 1 item

Work Programme Scrutiny officer

Page 152



Essential Reference Paper B

Meeting Date Topic Lead Officer Notes

Training – Anti Fraud 
investigations 15 mins

Darren Bowler and 
Hayley Frazer, Shared 
Anti-Fraud Service (SAFS, 
HCC)

Refresher training would  
only be needed if there 
were a number of new 
members on the 
Committee.

Progress on Anti-Fraud Plan 
2018/2019  & SAFS/EHC Anti-
Fraud Report 2017/2018

Nick Jennings, SAFS, HCC Progress - Anti-Fraud 
Plan 2018/2019  & 
SAFS/EHC Anti-Fraud 
Report 2017/2018.

Asset Management Update Isabel Brittain To be confirmed: which 
meeting best for this 
update.

Update of the AMG 
discussions and 
decisions

20 November 2018

Deadline:
7 November 2018 
(midday)

Q2 Financial Health Check 
Report(July – Sept 2018), incl 
section on performance 
And to include Corporate 
strategic plan progress to 

Isabel Britain, Head of 
Strategic Finance, 
Alison Street, Finance 
Business Partner
Ben Wood, Head of 

To include:
 section on 

performance 
 Corporate strategic 

plan progress

Page 153



Essential Reference Paper B

include risk management 
commentary

Comms, Strategy and 
Policy for performance 
and corporate strategic 
plan progress

Treasury Management  - Mid-
year Review 2017-18

Isabel Brittain, Head of 
Strategic Finance

Update on the 
Implementation of the Annual 
Governance Statement 
2018/19 – Action Plan 

Isabel Brittain, Head of 
Strategic Finance

Cyber security and IT disaster 
recovery

Helen Standen, Director PAG requested 24 July 
2018

Section 106 Agreements (inc a 
financial statement 
summarising the position) 

Helen Standen, Director 
and Head of Planning 
and Building Control

PAG requested 24 July 
2018

Work Programme Scrutiny Officer

Meeting Date Topic Lead Officer Notes

22 January 2019

Deadline:
9 January 2019

Update from Portfolio Holder 
for Finance & Support 
Services 

Cllr Geoff Williamson + 
Isabel Brittain, Head of 
Strategic Finance

to link in with budget 
report and as joint 
scrutiny meeting gives 
opportunity for OS 

Page 154



Essential Reference Paper B

members to have Q&A on 
this portfolio

Budget report & Medium 
Term Financial Plan 

Isabel Brittain, Head of 
Strategic Finance

2019/20 Corporate Service 
Plans

Ben Wood, Head of 
Comms, Strategy and 
Policy
Nathan Bookbinder, 
Policy Officer

All heads of service to 
be  present

Annual Audit Letter and 
External Audit Grants 
Certification Summary

Natalie Clark, EY Email Natalie Clark EY 
with report deadline 
details

Shared Internal Audit Service  
(SIAS) Update on Audit Plan 

Simon Martin SIAS, HCC

NB: THIS IS A JOINT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 
MEETING (Both OS 
and PAG Members 
to attend to 
scrutinise Budget 
and service plans)

Treasury Management 
Strategy 2018-19

Isabel Brittain, Head of 
Strategic Finance and 
External Auditor from 
Ernst & Young

Page 155



Essential Reference Paper B

Work Programme Scrutiny Officer

Meeting Date Topic Lead Officer Notes

Q3 Financial Health Check 
Report(Oct – Dec 2019), incl 
section on performance 
And risk management

Isabel Brittain, Head of 
Strategic Finance

Including Performance 
section (Ben Wood)

Risk management: 
Graham Mully

External Auditor 2018-19 
Audit Plan

External Auditor from 
Ernst & Young

Email Natalie Clark EY 
with report deadline

Shared Anti-Fraud Service 
with draft plan for 2019/20 
for approval 

Nick Jennings HCC SAFS/EHC Anti-Fraud 
Plan 2019/2020

Shared Internal Audit Plan 
(SIAS) 2019/20

Simon Martin SIAS, HCC

SIAS Audit Plan Update As above

Propose to combine into 
1 report

12 March 2019
Deadline 26th 
February 2019

Annual Review of Risk 
Management Strategy

Isabel Brittain, Head of 
Strategic 

Annual Update

Page 156



Essential Reference Paper B

Finance/Graham Mully, 
Risk and Insurance 
Business Advisor 

Annual Leisure Performance 
Report 2018

Head of Operations, Jess 
Khanom

To go to this meeting or 
May/June 2019

Scrutiny Work Programme Scrutiny Officer

July 2019 (final 
date to be 
determined)

Review of Council’s Insurance 
Contract

Isabel Brittain, Head of 
Strategic Finance and 
Business Insurance Risk 
Advisor

Report back on the 
Council’s position as an 
uncommitted founding 
Member of the LGA 
Mutual (Requested by 
PAG 24 July 2018)

Other items/notes: 

 Financial Healthcheck Reports (Isabel Brittain, Head of Strategic Finance)
         Finance will continue to provide quarterly finance health checks for 2018-19.  
         The dates for the quarterly finance healthchecks to go to PAG are as following: 
         Quarter 1 (April – June 2018) PAG – 4/09/2018

Page 157



Essential Reference Paper B

         Quarter 2 (July – September 2017) PAG – 20/11/2018
         Quarter3 (October – December 2017) PAG – 12/03/2018
         Outturn (full year 2018/19) PAG – will go to PAG in July 2019

 Insurance Options to PAG July 2019 – Review of current arrangements quested at PAG 24 July 2018

 Complaints lodged with the monitoring officer (Alison Stuart, Head of Democratic and Legal 
Support Services) - This will be as and when there are updates to report. 

 Constitution Review Update (Alison Stuart, Head of Democratic and Legal Support Services) Item 
removed from work programme as it will go to full council.

 Shared Anti-Fraud Service (SAFS):
November reports: Progress - Anti-Fraud Plan 2018/2019 & SAFS/EHC Anti-Fraud Report 2017/2018.

               March report:  SAFS/EHC Anti-Fraud Plan 2019/2020

 Shared Internal Audit Service (SIAS):
24 July 2018: Shared Internal Audit Service – update on Annual Assurance; Shared Internal Audit 
Service – update on Audit Plan
4 September 2018: SIAS Shared Internal Audit Plan Update; Annual SIAS- Board Report 2017-18

          22 Jan 2019: Shared Internal Audit Service  (SIAS) Update on Audit Plan 
          12 March 2019: Shared Internal Audit Plan (SIAS) 2019/20; SIAS Audit Plan Update

Page 158



Essential Reference Paper B

 Risk Monitoring: 
24 July 2018: Risk Management Monitoring Report (January  - March 2018)
4 September 2018: Risk Management Monitoring Report (April – June 2018)  
20 November 2018: Risk Management Monitoring Report (July to Sept 2018)
12 March 2019: Risk Management Monitoring Report (Oct to Dec 2019)

 Review of the introduction of ‘pay-on-exit’ parking software:
Officers will provide a briefing note for the Committee on this subject in May/June 2018

Items to be scoped/added:
 Staff recruitment/retention (including Planning)
 IT resilience (including Cyber security, BATs shared service and additional costs of license software) 

Officers have confirmed that this will be covered by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee’s scrutiny 
of Shared Services, which will be considered at a single item meeting, date TBC. (PAG 24 July 2018)

 Section 106  -  review of the management of S106 payments (PAG 24 July 2018)

Information:
 Housing Associations – General Concerns repairs etc (Discussed at PAG 24 July - within the remit of OS 

Committee) 

Page 159



Essential Reference Paper B

PERFORMANCE, AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE SCRUTINY – Deadlines for Papers

DATE OF MEETING REPORT DEADLINE (midday)

4 September 2018 22 August 2018

20 November 2018 7 November 2018

22 January 2019 9 January 2019

12 March 2019 26 February 2019

Page 160



1

ESSSENTIAL REFERENCE PAPER C

Scrutiny Proposal form

Name of proposer:

What would you like to suggest for investigation / review by 
scrutiny?

Why would you like this to be reviewed? (Include the main 
issues / concerns to be considered)

Please continue  on a separate sheet if necessary

What would be the likely benefits and outcomes of carrying out 
this investigation / review?

Page 161



2

Estimated resource implications on staff and councillors (e.g. 
research group, one-off report, dedicated meeting etc) to 
achieve the likely outcome.  The outcome must be proportionate 
to the cost of carrying out the review.

Suggested witnesses, documentation and consultation required

Will this investigation / review contribute to one or more of the 
Council’s Strategic Priorities?  If so, which (please tick)?

Improve the health and wellbeing of our communities

Enhance the quality of people’s lives

Enable a flourishing local economy

Page 162



3

Will this investigation / review meet one of the criteria 
below?  If so, which (please tick)?

Public Interest: The issue has been identified as a concern by 
local people 

Impact (Value): The issue will make a significant difference to 
the social, economic and environmental wellbeing of 
residents, and has the potential for outcomes that could lead 
to real improvements  

Relevance: The issue is relevant and does not duplicate 
existing work being undertaken elsewhere

Partnership working or external scrutiny: The issue 
involves moving towards collective action and community 
leadership

Would you like to be involved in the investigation / review?

Yes No

Date of request: Signed:

Please return this form to:  Scrutiny Officer, East Herts Council, 
Wallfields, Pegs Lane, Hertford, SG13 8EQ  Email: 
fiona.corcoran@eastherts.gov.uk 

Page 163

mailto:fiona.corcoran@eastherts.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	5 Annual Leisure Report 2017
	Leisure Annual Report 2017 - ERP A (Implications)
	Leisure Annual Report 2017 - ERP B (Performance Review Information)
	Leisure Annual Report 2017 - ERP C (Customer Exit Survey)

	6 Quarterly Corporate Healthcheck - Quarter 1 2018-19
	Quarterly Corporate Healthcheck Quarter 1 - ERP A
	Quarterly Corporate Healthcheck Quarter 1 - ERP B (Revenue Budget)
	Quarterly Corporate Healthcheck Quarter 1 - ERP C (Capital Monitoring)
	Quarterly Corporate Healthcheck Quarter 1 - ERP D (Performance Results)

	7 Annual Treasury Review 2017/18 Outturn
	Annual Treasury Review 2017-18 ERP A (Implications
	Annual Treasury Review 2017-18 ERP B (Review)

	8 Shared Internal Audit Service (SIAS) - Annual Report 2017/18
	9 Shared Internal Audit Service (SIAS): Progress Report
	10 Performance, Audit and Governance - Work Programme 2018/19
	Work Programme Report ERP A (Implications)
	Work Programme  ERP B  (Work Programme)
	Work Programme Report ERP C (proposal form)


